
February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 1 of  13

City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada )                                                                                            SS   February 22, 2022

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting beginning at 4:00 
PM, Tuesday, February 22, 2022. The meeting was held in the council chambers, 1751 College Ave., Elko 
and via GoTo Meeting.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener. The public can participate in person, by 
phone, tablet, laptop, or computer by registering with the GoTo Meeting link provided in the agenda. 
Questions can be sent to cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted for 
this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

II
.

ROLL CALL 

Present:
Reece Keener, Mayor
Mandy Simons, Councilwoman
Chip Stone, Councilman
Clair Morris, Councilman
Giovanni Puccinelli, Councilman

City Staff Present:
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary
Jan Baum, Financial Services Director
Curtis Calder, City Manager
Jeff Ford, Building Official
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager
Jack Snyder, Fire Chief
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Ty Trouten, Police Chief
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Dale Johnson, Utilities Director

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

mailto:cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov


February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 2 of  13

IV. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

Mayor Keener recognized the Scouts from Troup 91 present in chambers and welcomed to City 
Council Meeting.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

V.A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES for February 8, 2022

The minutes were approved by general consent.

VI. PRESENTATION

VI.A. Presentation of an appreciation plaque to former Planning Commissioner John 
Anderson for his 13 years and 3 months of service, and matters related thereto. 
INFORMATION ITEM ONLY – NON ACTION ITEM

Mayor Keener thanked John Anderson for all of his hard work.  He is an asset to the community.  He 
asked for a round of applause.  We will get this plaque delivered to him shortly.

VI.B. Presentation by Robert Thran, Associate Engineer, Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT) Pertaining to an Overnight I-80 Closure Currently Scheduled for June 
2022. The I-80 Closure is Necessary to Demo and Replace the Bridge Over 1-80 at Emigrant 
Pass, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE 
TAKEN

Robert Thran, NDOT, gave a presentation (included in the packet).

VI.C. Presentation by Duncan Golf Management on the 2021 Ruby View Golf Course Year-
In-Review, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM 

Scott Wackowski with Duncan Golf Management will present the 2021 Ruby View Golf 
Course Year-In-Review. JB

Scott Wackowski, Duncan Golf Management, gave a presentation (included in the packet).

VII. PERSONNEL



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 3 of  13

VII.A. Employee Introductions
1.) Michelle Harden, Part-Time Animal Control Officer

Present and introduced.

VII.B. Review, consideration, and possible approval to reclassify William Brad Burnham, 
Facilities Maintenance Technician, to Electrician, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION. 

William Brad Burnham, Facilities Maintenance Technician in the Facilities Department, has 
worked at the City of Elko since April 2020. Staff requests that Mr. Burnham be reclassified 
to Electrician (Grade 13 of OE3 Hourly Wage Schedule) which more accurately reflects the 
duties he currently performs. Over time, Mr. Burnham's responsibilities have expanded to 
include the job duties of Electrician.

Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager, explained the Facilities Department previously attempted 
to recruit for an Electrician but were not successful at that time.  We decided to change it to a Facilities 
Maintenance position.  We hired Brad as Facilities Maintenance but since then he had attended several 
training courses and now performs the duties of an electrician.

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, said Brad  is deserving to receive this re-classification.  He 
hears a lot of good things about Mr. Burnham from all departments.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
approve the position reclassification as presented.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

Mayor Keener said they were missing the payables in appropriations.  He asked if someone went 
through them and if they could send the payments and ratify the payables at the next meeting.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said if they are not on the agenda you cannot take action on them.  If you 
want to pay them now and ratify the desicion at another meeting, we have not done anything like this 
before.

Jan Baum, Financial Services Director, stated anything that would need council approval would be 
pulled.  

Mr. Stanton answered if you are pulling things that need Council approval, we can do that and ratify 
it at a later meeting.

VIII. APPROPRIATION



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 4 of  13

VIII.A. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to award a bid for the WRF West 
Primary Clarifier Recoating & Repairs Project 2021, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

Council directed Staff to solicit bids for the WRF West Primary Clarifier Recoating & Repairs 
Project 2021 on September 14, 2021. Bids were received on February 14, 2022 and opened 
at 3:00 pm. We received two compliant bids with MMI being low bid in the amount of 
$140,100.00. DJ

Dale Johnson, Utilities Director, explained we received two bids with no errors.  MMI was the low bid 
and he recommended award to them.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Simons, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to award a bid for the WRF West Primary Clarifier Recoating and Reparis Project 2021 in the 
amount of $140,100 to MMI.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

VIII.B. Review, consideration, and possible award of a contract for Federal Aviation 
Administration Grant # AIP 3-32-0005-059-2022 Acquire ARFF Vehicle (Class 4 - 1,500 
Gallon) and Acquire ARFF Ancillary Equipment to Jviation, Inc., and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

On October 22, 2021, City Council authorized Staff to solicit Statement of Qualifications to 
acquire ARFF Truck and Ancillary Equipment. The Request for Qualifications was issued on 
December 16, 2021. On January 20th 2022, bid proposals were opened. Two (2) proposals 
were received. Two Engineer's and Jviation, Inc. submitted proposals for review. After review 
of the proposals Staff recommends awarding a contract to Jviation, Inc. for the purpose of 
acquiring ARFF Equipment for the Elko Regional Airport. After successful contract 
negotiations, Staff will bring the contract back to council for final approval. As a reminder, 
FAA grant award allocations are funded based on bids. JF

Jim Foster, Airport Manager, explained we are looking at getting the contract out to Jviation.  This 
was not in our master contract with Jviation so the FAA requested us to solicit statements of 
qualifications and rank them according to what was in the RFQ.

Mayor Keener said we had some scouts here and asked if he would explain what ARFF was.

Mr. Foster explained ARFF is Airport Rescue Fire Fighting.  We are a commercial service airport and 
we are required to provide firefighting services.  We use specialized trucks for responding to 
emergencies that happen on the airport.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Morris, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve Jviation, Inc. as the firm selected to provide services for Airport Improvement 
Program (AIP 59) Acquire ARFF Vehicle and Ancillary Equipment.



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 5 of  13

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

IX.A. Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds 
to Elko County Recreation Board based on the Department of the Treasury lost revenue 
calculation and City Code Recreation Fund Transient Lodging distribution formula, and 
matters related thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was established to help states and localities 
address the economic and health consequences of the COVID-19 public health emergency 
and its economic impacts through four categories.  One of the four categories states “For the 
provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue due to the COVID-
19 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in the most recent full fiscal year 
prior to the emergency.”  Staff used the United States Department of Treasury lost revenue 
calculation to determine the lost revenue specifically attributable to the transient lodging tax 
revenue for the 12 months ending December 31, 2020.  Based on this calculation staff 
determined the lost revenue impact on the local tourism organizations that receive transient 
tax from the Recreation Fund per the City Code formula.  The disbursement to the Elko 
County Recreation Board was tabled at the January 25, 2022 meeting awaiting legal opinion 
regarding City Council members violating the Ethics in Government Act by voting to disburse 
ARPA fund to other public entities in which they are board members:

Elko County Recreation Board    $   51,454.73
JB

Jan Baum, Financial Services Director, explained Mr. Stanton gave his opinion and he did not believe 
it was a violation of the Ethics in Government Act for the Council to vote to award this funding.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said there is no violation and it does not appear to affect any of the 
council members.  He could not find anything that prohibited it.

Mayor Keener noted that each entity in Elko County has its own pot of money, and since these funds 
are originating from the City of Elko ARPA funding, he would like for the motion to read these funds 
are to be deposited into the City of Elko's account within the Elko County Recreation Board.  

Ms. Baum said she could talk to that board and make sure it was earmarked for the City of Elko.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Simons, seconded by Council Member Stone to 
approve disbursing $51,454.73 in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to the Elko County 
Recreation Board City of Elko account as outlined by staff based on the Department of the 
Treasury lost revenue calculation and City Code Recreation Fund Transient Lodging 
distribution formula.



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 6 of  13

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

IX.B. Review, consideration, and possible action of a special event application from St. 
Joseph's Catholic Church for an Easter Egg Drop Off, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

This item was tabled at the February 8, 2022 Council Meeting. St. Josephs Catholic Church 
is requesting to use a City Park for a Special Event in which a helicopter operated by El Aero 
will drop plastic eggs into the Park for Easter. Jim Foster, Airport Director was referred to 14 
CFR 91.15 which states: "No pilot in command of a civil aircraft may allow any object to be 
dropped from that aircraft in flight that creates a hazard to persons or property. However, this 
section does not prohibit the dropping of any object if reasonable precautions are taken to 
avoid injury or damage to persons or property." Mr. Foster was also notified that if they use 
the main City Park, they may need to contact RenoFlzDo to file a congested area plan due to 
the trees. The event organizers are wiling to use any park. CC

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said we tabled this item in order to obtain more information.  Mr. Wiley 
will let us know what parks will be available that day.

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, said we have been working with this group for a while.  
We are against using areas 1 through 8 where we have a majority of the tree canopy. We were 
recommending area 10, which is directly across the street from City Hall.  That area is available for 
rent and they have discussed that with the applicant.  Another option would be to use the Herrera 
Softball Field complex.  That area would be a bit more expensive to rent but it would be a good area 
to do this.  A third area would be the football fields that are closer to I-80 but the same price to use.  
He does not have a schedule out for Mountain View Park but he belived that field will be occupied on 
that date.  The Sports Complex will be getting a major sod overhaul and will not be available.  

Mr. Calder said the insurance pool was not excited about this event but they did not say they would 
not insure it.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, added insurance would start at $1 million.  He recommended entering 
into a contract with the applicant and El Aero.  He also recommended that anyone attending the event 
sign a release.

Mario Garcia, 2056 Sierra Drive, brought a presentation and asked that it be put on the overhead screen 
(Exhibit "A"). 

Mayor Keener did some research and it looks like they do these events all over the US.  The helicopters 
fly over the City on a regular basis.  We should at least give it a try and see how it goes.  It looks like 
a great event.

Councilman Stone said he fully supported this event.

Councilman Puccinelli asked about how many drops they would have to do since they will split it up 
for the different age groups.



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 7 of  13

Mr. Garcia said the drop zone was separated into the different age groups.  There will be only one 
drop.

Councilman Stone asked what field they would like to use.

Mr. Garcia answered they would like to use the field by the football fields.

Councilman Puccinelli liked the idea.

Councilman Morris liked the idea.  He is gun shy when the insurance pool is worried about events like 
this.  There is some liabilty to the City if something bad happens.

Councilwoman Simons thought we could work this all out.  If they take all precautions and get the 
insurance and they take on the responsibility, it can be worked out.  It sounds fun.

Mr. Stanton suggested making it subject to an agreement between the City of Elko, the organizer and 
El Aero and have that come back to the City for approval.

Mayor Keener called for public comments.

Chloe "Alex" Davies, 1050 Connolly Drive #22, said she felt this would be a great event for kids 
because kids are glued to their phones, tablets and whatever.  Getting them outside and getting exercise 
is good.  It will create great memories.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to allow St. Joseph Catholic Church to do the Egg Drop by helicopter at the football field or a 
location approved by Elko Parks and Recreation.  They must have a contract with the City of 
Elko, releasing them of all liabilities, along with El Aero and the event organizer and a signature 
release by a responsible adult for anyone that is the vicinty of the event and the drop zone area.  
The contract will come back to City Council for approval.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

 St. Joseph's Catholic Church Easter Egg Drop Off (Exhibit "A")

X. NEW BUSINESS

X.A. Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) lost 
revenue funds to the Boys and Girls Clubs of Elko, Inc., Committee Against Domestic 
Violence (CADV), Cowboy Arts & Gear Museum, Family Resource Center, Horizon 
Hospice, Igloo Recreation Center, Inc., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was established to help states and localities 
address the economic and health consequences of the COVID-19 public health emergency 



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 8 of  13

and its economic impacts through four categories.  One of the four categories states “For the 
provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue due to the COVID-
19 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in the most recent full fiscal year 
prior to the emergency.” The ARPA Final rule allowed NEU’s to take a standard Lost 
Revenue allowance up to $10 million total for the entire period of performance. This revenue 
allowance can be used for any governmental services.  City staff recommends using a portion 
of the lost revenue allowance for community donations. The community donations 
recommended to council are as follows:

Boys and Girls Club of Elko, Inc.                $    400,000.00
Committee Against Domestic Violence               10,000.00
Cowboy Arts & Gear Museum                             44,494.00
Family Resource Center                                      300,000.00
Horizon Hospice                                                 100,000.00
Igloo Recreation Center, Inc.                                40,000.00
Elko County Fair Board                                      258,836.21
                                                                       $ 1,153,330.21
JB

Jan Baum, Financial Services Director, explained every one of these organizations submitted an ARPA 
grant application.  Some of hte applications were for more than we are awarding.  She went over each 
of the grant awards.  We made sure these requests met ARPA requirements.

Mayor Keener appreciated Jan's time working on this.  He called for public comments.  He noted that 
Lori Gilbert was present and welcomed her to the meeting.

Councilman Morris was really glad to see some of these on here for the children.

Mayor Keener was glad that some of the requirements were relaxed and it made it much simpler.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said the change was between the interim rule and the final rule.  

Mayor Keener noted that as a City we do annual donations.  Has she thought if these will be in the 
budgets this year because of these donations.  

Ms. Baum answered they will be in the budget.  We have already received requests.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
approve disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds as follows:  Boys and Girls Club 
of Elko, Inc. $ 400,000.00; Committee Against Domestic Violence $10,000.00; Cowboy Arts & 
Gear Museum $44,494.00; Family Resource Center 300,000.00; Horizon Hospice 100,000.00; 
and, Igloo Recreation Center, Inc. 40,000.00, for a total of $894,494.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 9 of  13

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
Approve disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to Elko County Fair Board in 
the amount of $258,836.21.

 The motion passed. (4-0 Councilman Puccinelli abstained.)

X.B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Deed of Dedication for a Public Utility 
Easement, on City owned property, between APN 001-590-010 and APN 001-590-017, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

City Staff has discovered that this narrow strip of land has various public utilities in it, but no 
record of a public utility easement can be found. The area is encumbered by a drainage 
easement, and is believed to be a City owned parcel. BT

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, said he brought this to the attention to the County Assessor who has 
assigned the parcel an APN number.  A corrected Deed of Dedication with the new APN number was 
left on the dais for Council (Exhibit "B").  He recommended approval.

 Amended Deed of Dedication (Exhibit "B")

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve the Deed of Dedication for a Public Utility for APN 001-590-023.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

X.C. Review, consideration, and possible action to select auditing firm for annual independent 
auditing services for Fiscal Years beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2026 per 
responses to Request for Qualifications, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

Council directed Staff to solicit Requests for Qualifications (RFQ) from accounting firms to 
provide independent auditing services, and to prepare the annual audit for the City of Elko for 
Fiscal Years beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2026.  RFQ’s were received on or 
before January 31, 2022, and opened after 3:00 p.m. on that date.  A total of two (2) RFQ’s 
were received and reviewed by the audit firm selection committee: Eide Bailly LLP and 
Hinton Burdick CPA’s & Advisors.  The auditing committee evaluated both proposals based 
on technical qualifications and price.  Both firms met the technical requirements.  Pricing for 
the auditing services were as follows:
Firm Name:   Eide Bailly, LLP Hinton Burdick CPA’s & Advisors Fiscal Year: 
                              2022  $85,000  $59,700
                              2023  $88,000  $61,425
                              2024  $91,000  $63,300
                              2025  $94,000  $65,225
                              2026  $97,000  $67,200



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 10 of  13

Based on review of technical requirements, pricing and prior experience the auditing 
committee recommends awarding the City of Elko annual independent auditing services to 
Hinton Burdick CPA’s and Advisors.  JB

Jan Baum, Financial Services Director, explained we received 2 proposals.  We called some references 
and we have some prior experience with both of these firms.  The audit committee unanimously 
recommended Hinton Burdick.

Mayor Keener called for public comment without a response.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Simons to 
award the services to provide independent auditing services and to prepare the annual audit for 
the City of Elko for Fiscal Years beginning July 2, 2021 and ending June 30, 2026 to Hinton 
Burdick CPS's and Advisors.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

X.D. Review, consideration, and possible approval to apply to NDEP to be placed on the 
priority list for Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) funding for Drinking Water and Clean 
Water Revolving Funds, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Office of Financial Assistance (OFA) is working closely with EPA to provide funds that 
will benefit water or wastewater systems for infrastructure needs. The State Revolving Fund 
programs will administer these funds based on a priority list administered by NDEP. The City 
Water and Sewer Departments would like to apply to be placed on the priority lists for this 
funding to help offset the costs of the new Revised Lead and Copper Rule, Tank 
Rehabilitations, Well Rehabs, and Wastewater related projects where there is a need for 
improved infrastructure within the city. After being placed on the priority list staff will bring 
projects back to City Council for approval to apply for funding.

Dale Johnson explained what they were requesting.  We don't have a project list yet.  The lead and 
copper rule is a big one that was just revised in December of last year.  We have new rules to contend 
with and need to remove lead service lines and stuff like that.  We can also use the funding for well 
rehab, waste water projects, and possibly geothermal lines.

Mayor Keener said he had never heard of us having any lead piping within the City water 
infrastructure.

Mr. Johnson said we do have quite a bit. We are looking at alternatives to replacing the piping.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Morris, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
for staff to apply to NDEP to be placed on the priority list for Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
(BIL) funding for Drinking Water and Clean Water Revolving Funds.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 11 of  13

XI. REPORTS

XI.D. Utility Director -  Water Rights Presentation (Exhibit)

Dale Johnson gave a presentation (included in packet).

Mayor Keener was curious who is paying for all of this monitoring going on.

Mr. Johnson answered he was sure the USGS and DRA had grant funding.

Mayor Keener stated he remember Ryan Limberg talking about this for some time before he retired.  
It will be interesting to see how these workshops work out.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, stated we have enough water rights based on our Master 
Planning acreage that has been annexed into the City.  That assumes the water is in the ground for 
pumping.  When we annex property, we have to figure out how to serve that property.  We are upside 
down on water demand right now.  We have a lot of vacant property we need to address.

XI.A. Mayor and City Council 

Mayor reported a nice awards banquet Saturday night for Elko Fire Department.  Governor Sisolak 
will be speaking tomorrow on the State of the State.  He was sure staff will be tuned into that.

XI.B. City Manager 

Curtis Calder reported we got our letter submitted to the Department of Taxation Friday afternoon, 
for our $0.20 proposed tax increase.  He understood that Carlin also put in for 0.20 cents.  Possibly 
Wells too.  We are continuing our internal budget process.  We will meet tomorrow on captial 
equipment.  March 8 Airplanners is planning on being in town and working on some community based 
meetings on air service development.  They will be giving a presentation at Council Meeting.

XI.C. Assistant City Manager 

Scott Wilkinson reported we received 3 appraisal proposals that were sent on to Union Pacific.  We 
are hoping to hear back from UP on their preferance and then bring it to Council.  UP wants all the 
property, except for one building on VFW Drive, to be appraised as vacant property.

XI.D. Utilities Director 

Dale Johnson reported regarding the infrastructure money, NDEP is receiving $90 million a year for 
the next five years.

XI.E. Public Works 



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 12 of  13

No report.

XI.F. Airport Manager 

No report.

XI.G. City Attorney 

No report.

XI.H. Fire Chief 

Chief Snyder thanked the Mayor and Councilman Stone for attending the awards ceremony.  Deputy 
Fire Chief Johnston has started as of Sunday..

XI.I. Police Chief 

No report.

XI.J. City Clerk 

Absent.

XI.K. City Planner 

No report.

XI.L. Development Manager 

No report.

XI.M. Financial Services Director 

Jan Baum reported the next budget meeting, we will have our initial workshop.

XI.N. Parks and Recreation Director 

James Wiley reported  he just got back from vacation.  We are getting some snow storms so he will go 
to SnoBowl tomorrow to see if there is anything we can do up there.  If so, we will open on Saturday.  
We have a project coming up where we will be setting sod at the Sports Complex.  We are hoping for 
good weather for that.  Adult basketball league started last night.

XI.O. Civil Engineer 



February 22, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 13 of  13

No report.

XI.P. Building Official 

No report.

XII. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

Leslie Creel, 602 Ellens Way, Elko Trail System Initiative, spoke about the group and what they were 
formed for.  They have been working on the Lamoille Summit Trail System and finally got the funding 
to do the NEPA.  This could create a trail system and get a connection to the City of Elko and Spring 
Creek trail.

There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 1 of  15

City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada )                                             SS   February 8, 2022

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting beginning at 4:00 
PM, Tuesday, February 8, 2022. The meeting was held in the council chambers, 1751 College Ave., Elko 
and via GoTo Meeting.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener. The public can participate in person, by 
phone, tablet, laptop, or computer by registering with the GoTo Meeting link provided in the agenda. 
Questions can be sent to cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL
Present:

Reece Keener, Mayor
Mandy Simons, Councilwoman
Chip Stone, Councilman
Clair Morris, Councilman
Giovanni Puccinelli, Councilman

City Staff Present:
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary
Jan Baum, Financial Services Director
Curtis Calder, City Manager
Jeff Ford, Building Official
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Ty Trouten, Police Chief
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Jack Snyder, Fire Chief
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Dale Johnson, Utilities Director

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

mailto:cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov


February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 2 of  15

Mark Paris, CPA, 215 Bluffs Ave., Ste. 300, representing Section Five Associates, read a statement 
(Exhibit "A").

Mayor Keener said we would consider that a formal request to be on a future agenda.

Mr. Paris stated they could be ready to present, not at the next meeting but the one after that.

 Mark Paris Statement (Exhibit "A")

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

V.A. Approval of Minutes  January 25, 2021     Regular Session

The minutes were approved by general consent.  

VI. PRESENTATION

VI.A. Reading of a proclamation recognizing the month of February 2022 as "Beef Month", 
and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

Mayor Keener read the proclamation.

Julie Irish, President Elko County Cattlewomen, presented the Mayor with a large tri-tip.  She thanked 
him for the proclamation and spoke about the events they hold each year and what they do to help 
residents of the county.

VI.B. Presentation of the Elko Police Department 2021 Annual Report by Police Chief Ty 
Trouten, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

Chief Trouten gave a presentation.

VI.C. Presentation of a possible Recreation and Events Center by Rusty Bahr,CEO of the 
Boys and Girls Club of Elko, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON 
ACTION ITEM

Rusty Bahr, CEO Boys and Girls Club of Elko, gave a presentation.

Mayor Keener  thought it looked like a great plan.  Initially he thought it would be tough to get 
everyone on board with this.  He was in support of the project and would like to see it happen.  

Councilman Stone said he met wtih Mr. Bahr for a bit and was in support of this.  He took a trip to 
SLC to visit some centers.

Mr. Bahr said there are some issues to be worked out to make sure everyone was comfortable with 
everything.  Then he will come back for a formal ask.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 3 of  15

Erin Ferris, President of Elko Swim Team, said a new facility would be phenonomel for the swim 
team.  The Swim Team is in favor of the project.

Danny Story, Elko Adult Softball, said this will fill a gap that we didn't think we would see in our 
lifetime.  We do need to look further at the master plan for the ball fields because he thought we would 
still be short some fields.

Colby Curtis, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, said he moved to Elko in 2007 and loved 
everything here.  The only thing he missed was a recreation center.  He was shocked there wasn't one 
when he moved here.  The project makes a lot of sense.  We have an opportunity to get everyone on 
board and make it happen.

Alkie Mariluch, Silver State Stampede Board, said this would help them.  We have had some growing 
pains over the years.  We would be able to bring additional events in with this.

Mayor Keener asked if anyone was opposed or had concerns.

Jaime Glover, 698 3rd Street, said $52 million is a lot of money.  This would put Elko on the map.  He 
felt we also need to provide a place for people to live.  He knows of people that work for the mines 
that are unable to afford a house.  This is massive but we need to be realistic.

VII. PERSONNEL

VII.A. Employee Introductions:
1)  Michelle Harden, Part-Time Animal Control Officer

Not present.

VIII. APPROPRIATION

VIII.C. Review and possible approval of “SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT TO USE 
CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND MONIES FROM THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 
ACT”, and matters related thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was established to help states and localities 
address the economic and health consequences of the COVID-19 public health emergency 
and its economic impacts.  The City of Elko has committed to awarding ARPA grants to 
Subrecipients.  Subrecipients will be required to sign the “SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 
TO USE CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND MONIES FROM THE AMERICAN RESCUE 
PLAN ACT” before receiving ARPA grant funds. JB

Jan Baum, Financial Services Director, explained the Subrecipient Agreement was included in the 
packet.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 4 of  15

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
approve the Subrecipient Agreement To Use Coronavirus Relief Fund Monies from the 
American Rescue Plan Act.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)  

X. NEW BUSINESS

X.G. Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds 
to local organizations for promoting and expanding behavioral health services in the City of 
Elko.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was established to help states and localities 
address the economic and health consequences of the COVID-19 public health emergency 
and its economic impacts through four categories.  One of the four eligible categories states 
“To respond to the public health emergency or its negative economic impacts, including 
assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to impacted industries such 
as tourism, travel, and hospitality”.  During the ARPA public hearings Council recognized 
the negative behavioral health impacts on the community as a result of COVID-19.  Staff 
recommends awarding grants to organizations committed to promote and expand behavioral 
health services in the City of Elko.  The following is a list of organization’s programs and the 
recommended ARPA commitments:

• Nevada Health Centers – Elko Behavioral Health Expansion        $ 1,913,805
•Vitality Center – Increase Behavioral Health and Addiction 
  Treatment and Increase Mobile and Crisis Response $    878,000
• Vitality Center – Vitality Center Pandemic Resilience                   $    147,000
• Northeastern Nevada Regional Hospital – 2022 Behavioral
Health Initiative                                                                                  $    500,000
                                                                                                 Total   $ 3,438,805

Grants will be distributed to above referenced grantees based on application and performance 
timelines and in accordance with ARPA timelines as outlined in the final rule, “funds must 
be obligated by December 31, 2024, and expended by December 31, 2026”. JB

Ms. Baum explained during our public comment and special meetings, we believe City Council was 
interested in setting aside funds to help our community with behavioral health.  Three of the 
applications they received were from these organizations that are committed to helping the behavioral 
health in our community.

Mayor Keener called up a representative from Nevada Heath Centers.

Steven Bratman, Nevada Health Centers, spoke about their behavioral health expansion.

Mayor Keener said he attended their grand opening in November and was impressed with all that they 
have done.  He called up Vitality Center.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 5 of  15

Esther Quilici, Vitality Unlimited, thanked Council for their decision to grant them some money.  She 
explained their proposal.  She thanked City Council for their support.

Steve Simpson, NNRH, explained their goal with the grant money.

Councilwoman Simons left at 5:40 pm

Mayor Keener called for public comment without a response.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, spoke about the process of approving the grant requests.  We are looking 
for the projects that would have the biggest impact to the community.  He was proud to be part of this 
and hoped it will change the future of the community.

Ms. Baum said in the subrecipient agreement, there are some reporting guidelines.  The reporting will 
be brought in when the funding goes out.

Councilman Puccinelli thanked them for what they do for the community.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve committing $3,438,805 in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds as outlined above 
to local organizations committed to promoting and expanding behavioral health services in the 
City of Elko. Grants funds will be distributed based on application and performance timelines 
and in accordance with ARPA timelines as outlined in the final rule, “funds must be obligated 
by December 31, 2024, and expended by December 31, 2026”.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

XII. PETITION, APPEAL, AND COMMUNICATION

XII.A. Review, consideration, and possible action of a special event application from 
St. Joseph's Catholic Church for an Easter Egg Drop Off, and matters related 
thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

St. Joseph’s Catholic Church is requesting to use a City Park for a Special Event 
in which a helicopter operated by El Aero will drop plastic eggs into the Park for 
Easter.  Jim Foster, Airport Director was referred to 14 CFR 91.15 which states: 
"No pilot in command of a civil aircraft may allow any object to be dropped from 
that aircraft in flight that creates a hazard to persons or property. However, this 
section does not prohibit the dropping of any object if reasonable precautions are 
taken to avoid injury or damage to persons or property."  Mr. Foster was also 
notified that if they use the main City Park, they may need to contact RenoFIzDo 
to file a congested area plan due to the trees.  The event organizers are willing to 
use any park.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 6 of  15

Mario Garcia, 2056 Sierra Drive, thanked Council for their time.  Their idea came from a previous 
hunt he attended.  He moved to Elko 2 years ago from Houston, Texas.  There were similar events 
there.  Their intent is to have El Aero drop containers of easter eggs and fly off.  There was some 
concern regarding injury and they are planning on having the area cordoned off where the eggs will 
be dropped.

Mayor Keener asked what exactly they are looking at dropping.

Mr. Garcia answered they will be plastic eggs filled with candy or toys.  They will have volunteers to 
help keep the age groups separate.  Afterwards, the volunteers will clean up the park.

Mayor Keener asked if anyone will be under the helicopter when the eggs are dropped.

Mr. Garcia answered no.

Councilman Stone said he went to an event in Winnemucca where they dropped ping pong balls and 
it went well.

Curtis Calder, City Manager said he reached out to Wayne Carlson at POOL/PACT, our liability 
insurance carrier.  While this is a Council decision, he would not be thrilled with it from a liability 
standpoint.  These are done in other communities and we may have even done one years ago at the 
golf course.  He wanted to remind the Council there was a time where there was a rescue at Angel 
Lake where a helicopter crashed and City Fire was involved.  Luckily there were no fatalities but there 
were injuries.  Something like this may not be prohibited but Mr. Carlson was not happy with it.  He 
wanted everyone to exercise extreme caution when considering this.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said there are some forseeable risks with this and he would like to see 
some releases throughly hammered out before this event.  We would need a contract with El Aero and 
with the event organizers.  We are talking about a fair amount of paperwork.

Jim Foster, Airport Manager, said you can do this but it will depend upon the location.  He was told 
around trees was considered congested and you would need a congested area plan.  It is not illegal.  It 
should not have an effect on the commercial flights.  

Mr. Garcia stated they were willing to use any park that was deemed appropriate.  He wanted to make 
this event as safe as possible.

Mayor Keener understood the safety and liability concerns but thought it looked like an enjoyable 
event.  He was open to listening to both sides.

Councilman Morris thought the Main City Park would be out of the question because of the trees.

There was some discussion about other locations where the event could be held.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 7 of  15

Mr. Calder noted there could be conflicts with sporting events that are already scheduled.  If this were 
his decision to make, he would say no because it brings risk that we don't need.  You can still have 
your easter egg event without the helicopter.

Councilman Stone understood the risk but did not have a problem with it.  

Mayor Keener said it was clear there are some issues with some locations.  He thought this should be 
tabled and find out from staff what is available for this event.  We can re-hear the matter at the next 
meeting.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
Table this item until the next meeting.  Meanwhile, staff will determine what fields are available.  
We will get some type of plan from El Aero as far as a flight plan goes and we will hear back 
from Mr. Garcia on some safety precautions for the event to be held April 16th.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

BREAK

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

IX.A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Transportation Services 
Agreement between SkyWest Airlines, Inc. and the City of Elko, and matters 
related thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

This item was tabled at the January 11th and January 25th, 2022 Council 
meetings. At the December 14, 2021 meeting, the City Council approved a 
consulting agreement between the City of Elko, and Airplanners, LLC., for the 
purpose of providing air service management and development tasks on behalf of 
the City. As a result, the proposal Transportation Services Agreement is actively 
being negotiated and will be presented to the City Council upon the availability. 
CC

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained we received this back from SkyWest late last night.  He 
recommended approval.  He went over the terms of the agreement.

Mayor Keener thought we will get to the $1 million cap quickly based on the current schedule they 
have.  He was trying to book through the Skywest website and because the layover was greater than 
four hours, on the departure and the arrival into Salt Lake it showed there were no flights available.  
You could go to another website and see that there is a flight available.  

Jim Foster explained he was able to do the same thing.  He went to a third party site and was able to 
book the flight.  The policy is the 4-hour window but we can approach Delta to waive the 4 hour 
window, or make them longer windows.  It would be something the airline would be willing to do.  He 
had a phone call from a gentleman wanting to fly here from New York but he ran into that same 
problem.  



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 8 of  15

Mr. Calder said the idea is to buy us some time and not lose the carrier.  If we lose the carrier, we 
would lose TSA.  It is not ideal but we are in better shape than some other communities.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve a Transportation Services Agreement between SkyWest Airlines, Inc. and the City of 
Elko, as a one-year agreement with a $1 million cap based on load factors.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

VIII. APPROPRIATION (Cont.)

VIII.A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION

**        A motion was made by Council Member Morris, seconded by Council Member Stone to 
approve the general warrants in the amount of $713,722.74.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

VIII.B. Review and possible ratification of General Hand Cut Checks, and matters related 
thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

**        A motion was made by Council Member Morris, seconded by Council Member Stone to 
approve  Hand-Cut checks in the amount of $99,942.03.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

X. NEW BUSINESS (Cont.)

X.A. Review, consideration, and possible action to approve Reversion to Acreage No. 1-22, 
filed by the City of Elko, for the proposed merger of two parcels on Walters Court into one 
new parcel approximately 5.289 acres in size within the LI (Light Industrial) Zoning District, 
and matters related thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located on the southwest corner of Silver Street and Walters Court 
(APNs 001-630-086 and 001-630-087) and consists (in part) of the Elko Police Department 
building. The Police Department is requesting that these parcels be merged to facilitate the 
expansion of the police station. MR

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained the request.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 9 of  15

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
approve Reversion to Acreage No. 1-22 subject to the findings outlined in the staff reported dated 
January 20, 2022.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

X.B. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2021 Annual Report of Planning 
Commission Activities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning Commission is required to prepare and 
present an Annual Report of its activities to Council. On February 1, 2022, the Planning 
Commission took action to approve the 2021 Annual Report of Planning Commission 
Activities and forward it to the Council.  CL

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, gave a presentation.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Puccinelli, seconded by Council Member Morris 
to approve to accept the 2021 Annual Report of Planning Commission Activities.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

X.C. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a letter of resignation Planning 
Commissioner John Anderson and to further authorize Staff to commence with the standard 
recruitment process to fill the vacancy on the Planning Commission, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Mr. Anderson was appointed to the Planning Commission on October 28, 2008, and states 
that he needs to resign due to his health. CL

Ms. Laughlin explained Mr. Anderson stated he does not want a plaque presentation but he has been 
on the Planning Commission for the longest.  We feel it is important that we have a plaque made for 
him and presented at a Council Meeting.  

Mayor Keener agreed.  We need to thank him for his service and the countless hours he put in.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
approve to accept Planning Commissioner's resignation from the Planning Commission.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

X.D. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Settlement Agreement, Mutual 
Release, and Waiver of All Claims between the Elko Police Department and Richard Arzola, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 10 of  15

On August 17, 2021, Richard Arzola filed a Complaint in Federal Court against the Elko 
Police Department, Officer Bart Ortiz, and Officer Nathaniel Bradford alleging that he was 
deprived of his constitutional rights during his arrest on December 20, 2019. POOL/PACT 
retained the law firm of marquis Aurbach Coffing in Las Vegas to represent and defend the 
City, Officer Ortiz and Officer Bradford. The parties have now agreed upon a full settlement 
in the amount of $12, 500.00. Neither the City, Officer Ortiz, nor Officer Bradford are 
admitting fault or liability. DS

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, explained he read through the settlement agreement and it is standard.  
The City is not admitting to liability and not admitting that anything was done wrong.  The amount of 
the settlement is designed to prevent the risk that is inherent in any litigation and save the parties 
money.

MayorKeener acknowleged they are both outstanding officers in the EPD.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve the Settlement Agreement, Mutual Release and Waiver of All Claims with Richard 
Arzola and direct the Mayor to execute the document on behalf of the Elko Police Department.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

X.E. Review and possible approval of a First Addendum to Hangar Lease Extension of 
Airport Hangar B1, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Current ground lease holder of Hangar B1 is requesting an additional 540 square foot 
extension to the current ground lease. This extension to the lease will allow for the tenant to 
improve and expand their hangar.

Jim Foster, Airport Manager, explained the hangar owner approached them with this.  He just wants 
to improve his hangar with an extension and possibly some other infrastructure.  It is one of the bigger 
hangars on the facility.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve the First Addendum to Hangar Lease Extension.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

X.F. Review, consideration, and possible authorization to advertise two (2) vacant positions 
on the California Trail Advisory Board, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION

There are two (2) vacant positions on the California Trail Advisory Board. Staff is seeking 
Council approval to advertise for the two vacant positions. CC



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 11 of  15

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained they are looking at reconstituting this board and their are two 
vacancies.  We will go through the standard recruitment process to get them filled.

Mayor Keener asked if the board had any pull on the operations at the Center.

Mr. Calder answered no, not really.  This is a unique advisory board because it is required as part of 
the federal legislation that created the center.  He was not sure why it was important at the time.  Now 
it is more of getting updates and relaying that information to the Council.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to advertise for the 2 vacant postions on the California Trail Advisory Board.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

XI. RESOLUTION AND ORDINANCE

XI.A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 04-22, a resolution 
authorizing augmentation of the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year Budget of the Capital Construction 
Fund, increasing appropriations to $3,401,900 to account for $922,502 in unanticipated 
revenues, pursuant to NRS 354.598005, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION

The Capital Construction Fund had increased revenues due to the proceeds from the sale of 
land for the Veterans’ Cemetery. When the 2021/2022 budget was prepared the City of Elko 
did not know if City of Elko land would be chosen for the Cemetery.  JB

Jan Baum, Financial Services Director, explained the augmentation.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Stone, seconded by Council Member Morris to 
approve Resolution No. 04-22, augmenting the Capital Construction Fund in the amount of 
$922,502 pursuant to NRS 354.598005.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

XI.B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 05-22, a resolution 
authorizing augmentation of the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year Budget of the General Fund, 
increasing appropriations to $42,910,256 to account for $8,000,000 in unanticipated revenues, 
pursuant to NRS 354.598005, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The General Fund had increased revenues due to the receipt of American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) Funds in July, 2021.  For the 2021/2022 fiscal year $8,000,000 of the ARPA funds 
are allocated to Water Infrastructure. JB

Ms. Baum explained of the $13.7 million that has been received, $8 million we would like to allocate 
to the water infrastructure.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 12 of  15

**        A motion was made by Council Member Morris, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve Resolution No. 05-22 augmenting the General Fund budget in the amount of 
$8,000,000 pursuant to NRS 354.598005.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

XI.C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 06-22, a resolution 
authorizing augmentation of the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year Budget of the Sewer and Water Fund.   
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Water Fund had increased revenue due to the City of Elko allocating $8,000,000 in 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds to water infrastructure projects in FY 2021/2022.  
In addition, the Water and Sewer Funds are augmenting budgets for capital project spend that 
was projected to occur prior to June 30, 2021 but occurred during fiscal year 2022. JB

Ms. Baum explained this brings the $8 million into the water budget.

**        A motion was made by Council Member Morris, seconded by Council Member Puccinelli 
to approve Resolution No. 06-22 augmenting the Water and Sewer Fund for the amounts in the 
attached spreadsheet pursuant to NRS 354.598005.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)  

XIII. REPORTS

XIII.A. Mayor and City Council

Mayor Keener reported on the Government Affairs Committee Meeting at the Chambers of Commerce.  
There was some talk of the taxes that seem to be in play regarding the expired Pay as you Go but the 
County was not present.  It was a wonderful fundraiser for the High School Drama Club.  There was 
a Nevada League of Cities meeting last week where he was elected to a Liaison position.  Leslie Harper 
will be out here for the next meeting.  The League is going through some retooling right now with a 
new vision and a new plan to execute on.  He got to swear in the newest planning commissioner last 
week.  

Councilman Stone said the Elko High School fundraiser helped the Drama Department and the next 
play will be held in the new center that has been built at the High School.

XIII.B. City Manager

Curtis Calder wanted to touch base on the property tax issue. There are some statutory deadlines that 
all governmental entities have to follow in the budget process.  One of the documents that drives our 
budget process is the the state proforma document that talks about tax rates and abatements.  The state 
has a deadline of February 22nd to have the request in to the state.  We caught wind last week that the 



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 13 of  15

Elko County Commission was exploring the idea of going after the 0.75 cent pay as you go.  We have 
had some conversations with our staff and we have some concerns.  There was a report that was jointly 
paid for by the City and the County that explored our options after pay as you go expired.  Based on 
that report, the City Council raised the tax rate by 17.7 cents.  We haven't seen any revenue since the 
rate increase.  We were surprised to see the County requested a follow-up report to the first report 
that amended the conclusion to the first report.  We were not asked about it and the consultant did not 
bring it up to us.  We were cut out of the loop.  We are now in the loop.  Because of that, City Council 
will have to have a special meeting after the Elko County Meeting next week.  Kim Wilkinson will be 
sending out an email tomorrow to see what will work best for everyone's schedule.

XIII.C. Assistant City Manager

Scott Wilkinson said they received a proposal for the Union Pacific appraisal.  Hopefully, we get all 
three in and can bring them all back to Council for review.

Mayor Keener asked about the VA cemetery.

Mr. Wikinson answered they have not heard anything on that.

XIII.D. Utilities Director

No report.

XIII.E. Public Works

No report.

XIII.F. Airport Manager

No report.

XIII.G. City Attorney

No report.

XIII.H. Fire Chief

Chief Snyder reported we did not get the SAFER Grant we applied for last year.  FEMA doesn't give 
a good reason as to why is was turned down, just a yes or no.

XIII.I. Police Chief

No report.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 14 of  15

XIII.J. City Clerk

Kelly Wooldridge reported we went live tonight on the new agenda software.  She demonstrated how 
they can get the agenda information on the overhead screen.  There are still some bugs we are working 
out.

XIII.K. City Planner

Mayor Keener asked about the lights downtown.

Cahty Laughlin answered she had not heard anything.

XIII.L. Development Manager

No report.

XIII.M. Financial Services Director

Jan Baum reported the Elko County Rec Board ARPA Grant will be on the next meeting.  The next 
meeting will also have additional recommendations.

XIII.N. Parks and Recreation Director

Mayor Keener asked if the SnoBowl was able to operate last weekend.

James Wiley answered they were not able to operate.  They did make it through some beginner ski 
lessons.  The conditions are not good right now.

XIII.O. Civil Engineer

No report.

XIII.P. Building Official

Mayor Keener asked if there was anything on the temple or apartments.

Jeff Ford answered no.

Mayor Keener asked if Susie Shurtz was online.  He asked about the lawsuit against the Police Officers 
and if there would be a negative mark in their personnel files.  

Ms. Shurtz said that from their perspective it would not be a negative in their file.

XIV. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments.



February 8, 2022 City Council | Minutes Page 15 of  15

There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk



Created on 2/15/2022  Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Presentation of an appreciation plaque to former Planning Commissioner John 
Anderson for his 13 years and 3 months of service, and matters related thereto. 
INFORMATION ITEM ONLY – NON ACTION ITEM

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Presentation

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information:

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required:   N/A
Budget amount available:  N/A
Fund name:  N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:

9. Recommended Motion:

10. Prepared by: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution:

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Presentation by Robert Thran, Associate Engineer, Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT) Pertaining to an Overnight I-80 Closure That is Currently 
Scheduled for June 2022. The I-80 Closure is Necessary to Demo and Replace the Bridge 
Over 1-80 at Emigrant Pass, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO 
ACTION WILL BE TAKEN

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Presentation

4. Time Required: 30 Minutes

5. Background Information:

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: NDOT Presentation I-80 Closure June 2022 by 
NDOT Civil Engineer, Robert Thran

9. Recommended Motion: Information Only - No Action Required

10. Prepared by: Kim Wilkinson, Administrative Assistant

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName
>

<#DistributionEmail
>

<#DistributionFax
>

<#DistributionMailing
>



I-80 Closure 
for

Emigrant Pass Bridge Demolition



PROJECT BACKGROUND

NDOT 3849 Consists of:  Construct Truck climbing lanes eastbound and westbound, and replace existing bridge 
structure I-889

Remove and replace approximately six miles of I-80 roadway surface

Construct five-mile westbound truck climbing lane (completed 2021)

Construct  three-mile eastbound truck climbing lane

Replacing bridge over I-80 at Emigrant Pass (originally constructed in 1967) to widen interstate for east bound truck 
climbing lane



I-80 LOOKING EAST AT PRIEMUX CANYON



I-80 LOOKING WEST AT PRIEMUX CANYON



I-80 CLOSURE

CLOSURE FOR
PUBLIC SAFETY
9pm June 18 -
5am June 19
Subject to change.



DEMOLITION PLAN - SEQUENCING



EXISTING STRUCTURE
BEING EXPANDED FOR NEW TRUCK CLIMBING LANE



EXISTING STRUCTURE – I-889



DEMOLITION PLAN – DEBRIS REMOVAL



PLANNED SIGNAGE

NDOT plans an extensive 
network of electronic and other 

roadway signs noting the closure. 



STATE MAP-INFORMATION

Subject to change.

1 – Port of Entry

2 - Fernley

3 - Lovelock

4 - Winnemucca

5 – Battle Mountain

6 – Valmy Rest Area

7-8 Beowawe/Palisades

9 – Carlin WB I80

10 – Carlin Center Exit 278

11 – Elko Exit 303 WB

12 – Wells Exit 352 WB

13 – Wendover Exit 410 WB

14 – Jackpot SB US93

1

1 1

1

1

2

3

4 5

6

7-8

9 WB

9 SB

10
11 12

13

14

151617

15 – Ely NB US93

9 – Carlin SB SR 278 – Exit 
279

16 – Eureka – Jct US 50/SR278

17 – Austin –Jct US 50/SR 305



ELKO COUNTY MAP – EAST OF CLOSURE

9 – Carlin WB I80 – Exit 
279

9 WB

10

9SB

11

14

12

13

9 WB

9 – Carlin WB I80

9 – Carlin SB SR 278 – Exit 
279

10 – Carlin Center Exit 278

11 – Elko Exit 303 WB

12 – Wells Exit 352 WB

13 – Wendover Exit 410 WB

14 – Jackpot SB US93

Subject to Change



ELKO - EAST OF CLOSURE

11
11 – Elko Exit 303 WB

Subject to Change



CONSTRUCTION AREA – PALISADES & EMIGRANT PASS

8 – SB Palisades SB Dirt Road

8 – WB I 80 – Exit 271



ALTERNATE ROUTES AROUND CLOSURE - ARIAL VIEW

NDOT is advising not to travel during the closure or use 
alternate routes.  

ADVISORY ONLY

Paved Road
Paved/Dirt Road



ALTERNATE ROUTES/INFORMATION/CLOSURE LOCATIONS
AROUND CLOSURE - COUNTY MAPS

5 – SB SR 305, Exit 231

5 – EB I-80, Exit 233

17 – Austin –Jct US 50/
SR 305 5 SB

5 EB

17

5 – EB I  80, Exit 231

5 EB



ALTERNATE ROUTES/INFORMATION/CLOSURE LOCATIONS
AROUND CLOSURE - COUNTY MAPS

7 – EB I-80, Exit 261

8 – WB I-80, Exit 271

16 – Eureka – Jct US 50/
SR278

16

6 7 86 – Beowawe Rest Area, 
Exit 254 EB

Subject to Change



FLYER FOR DISTRIBUTION (SUBJECT TO CHANGE)

Subject to Change



QUESTIONS?

Robert Thran, Assistant Resident 
rthran@dot.nv.gov| (775) 777-2813



Created on 2/15/2022 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Presentation by Duncan Golf Management on the 2021 Ruby View Golf Course 
Year-In-Review, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY – NON ACTION 
ITEM

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Presentation

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes

5. Background Information: Scott Wackowski from Duncan Golf Management will present 
the 2021 Ruby View Golf Course Year-In-Review. JB

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: 0
Budget amount available: 0
Fund name: 0

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Slide Presentation

9. Recommended Motion: INFORMATION ONLY – NO ACTION REQUIRED

10. Prepared by: Jan Baum, Financial Services Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action: N/A

13. Council Agenda Distribution:

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



2021 RUBY VIEW 
GOLF COURSE

YEAR-IN-REVIEW



2021 Ruby View
Year-in-Review
Let’s start at the beginning…..

RFP, Interview, Contract

OK….OK.. Let’s get to work and open already!!!!



CLUBHOUSE TRANSITION- Clean Slate!
We have been in the golf business for awhile(40+years) and have leased, purchased 
and managed golf courses our entire careers but this transitions was like no other!

The previous lease holder left in October. We didn’t start until Feb 1st

Big Gap!
We are starting from scratch….WE GOT THIS!

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



CLUBHOUSE TRANSITION- Clean Slate!
■ There is starting with a clean slate and then there is starting with a crystal-clear 

clean slate!
– No previous tournament contracts
– No email customer data base
– No range balls
– No telephones
– No flatware, glassware or silver ware
– Little to No fixtures or furniture in golf shop for merchandise
– No point of sale

NO BIGGIE, WE GOT THIS!!!!!

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



GOLF COURSE OPERATIONS TRANSITION
■ City was phenomenal on getting started and collective effort getting utilities 

and all centralized services up to speed

– Staffing
■ Our first goal was to hire our lead for the Golf Department and the apparent 

candidate was also a former employee of the club

– Dayton Scott, Director of Golf, has been a welcomed member of the 
DGM team and our lead at Ruby View

– Hourly staffing will be a continual challenge

■ Second goal was to secure F&B staff

– EZ Point of Sale was fairly smooth with normal hiccups especially 
considering the accelerated timeline we were on
■ EZ Links had a 6-month lead time, due to our relationship we jumped to top 

of list
– POS installed and ready to go by March 1!!! Felt like a miracle!!!

– Range Balls and Merchandise were an issue
■ Range balls had 6 month wait but were able to get them by late April
■ Merchandise was slow coming in all year but made it work

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



FOOD & BEVERAGE OPERATIONS TRANSITION
■ We had tables and chairs but that was about it…..

– F&B team reached out to vendors and able to stock grill 

with necessary FF&E within a couple weeks of start of 

the contract

– Health Permitting

■ The hardest issue with transition and had very 

difficult time getting scheduled- thru continued 

persistence of DGM and City we were able to over 

come this hurdle and got grill opened by March 19

– Staffing

■ This was among one of our top priorities was 

securing the lead Bartender - We feel like we hit 

the jackpot with Erika Jensen

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



Accounting and 
Administration
■ Initial data transition took quite a bit of work

– City was able to provide reporting of what pass sales, cart storage, 

trail fees, etc. had already been paid for before we took over 

management

■ All data was transferred into new POS to ensure everything 

matched correctly

■ Communication has been good on keeping payments made to 

the city for pass sales and cart storage clean

■ Have kept a clean database of new pass sales and future years 

should be much smoother with already having many pass 

holders and cart storage in the system

■ Monthly financial reporting is in place

– Over the first few months City Staff and our accounting team worked 

seamlessly!



Golf Now / EZLinks relationship
■ Software and Hardware

– Our relationship provides a variety of services that help us operate efficiently
■ Website development and support

■ Tee sheet and online booking through GolfNow.com and TeeOff.com

■ Season Pass Holder / Cart Storage management through EZSuite

■ Point of Sale software and support

■ Premier Marketing Platform
– Discussed in Marketing section

■ FULLY INSTALLED AND READY TO GO BY MARCH 1ST!



Prior to opening installed Covid Policy and Procedures

■ In collaboration with the Nevada Golf 
Course Owners Association, our 
industry developed guidelines and 
procedures acceptable to state 
guidelines that we implemented 
across all DGM courses- it was now 
Ruby View’s turn

■ It was important to City Staff, DGM 
and our guests that we set up policy 
and procedure to stay compliant and 
current with state guidelines

COVID–19 RESPONSE



Reopening 
list of covid-19 operating procedures

Actions Specific to Golf/Club Operations

• • After each use we will clean & sanitize golf carts high touch areas (i.e. steering

• wheels, cup holders, seats) before going back out for use. Consider having

• sanitizer wipes available for golfers in the golf cars.

• • All cart attendants will wear rubber gloves to attend to guests.

• • Space golf cars in staging area (i.e. further apart to accommodate appropriate

• social distance of six feet or more). Allow one person to ride per cart if requested.

• • Golf bag must always remain in the golfer’s possession. After play, no staff

• member should handle bag. Recommend keeping in car or at home.

• • Bag storage currently will not be available. We will retrieve a bag for the day, but

• it is the Members responsibility to take it with them after they play or practice. It

• will not be returned to the bag room. Also please keep the bag storage room

• locked so we can have the conversation with the member.

• • All bathroom’s door handles will be clean & sanitized each hour. Hand sanitizers

• available in every bathroom.

• • Walking will be encouraged.

• • Restaurants (where available) should REMOVE tables to allow appropriate social

• distancing.

• • Offer one cart per person.

• • Bunker rakes and flagsticks will be removed from the golf course. We

• recommend automatic two putt on greens during the round.

• • Every hour we will clean & sanitize of on course restroom facilities.

• • Clean & sanitize the bar gun each hour.

• • All entry and exit door handles will be cleaned & sanitized each hour. This will

• include all restroom countertops as well as faucets and restroom stall doors and

• handles.

• • All drinks will be of the pre-packaged variety

• • Member & Guests will mix their own drinks, staff will provide ice.

• • All food orders will be presented in to go boxes with disposable utensils. This

• includes individual packages for condiments.

General Actions to Prevent the Spread of Covid-19

• • Wash your hands, wash your hands, wash your hands! Don’t touch your face.

• • Install hand sanitizer stations throughout the facility with member/guest activity

• (i.e. clubhouse, admin offices and locker rooms).

• • Institute more frequent and thorough cleaning procedures for high touch areas

• (i.e. doorknobs, light switches, tables, chairs, etc.).

• • Educate members/guests and staff as to the protocol of social distance, hand

• washing and other best practice recommendations put forth by the CDC.

• • Encourage facility members/guests and staff to recognize proper social distance

• of six feet or more from others to limit physical contact such as handshakes.

• • Encourage members/guests and staff members who do not feel well to stay

• home.

• • Staff members should wash your hands and sanitize as frequently as you can

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



2021 Ruby View update
WE ARE NOW READY TO OPEN!!!!

§ Driving Range opened 3/3

§ Golf Course opened 3/6

§ And 4 days later we are closed with snow, northern 
Nevada baby!!! Opened back up two days later.

§ First F&B sales recorded 3/19

§ We made it, fully opened and operational in under 50 
days.

§ Let’s Go……..



2021 Ruby View 
update
§ Let’s take this one month at a time

§ We had our challenges

§ Overall was great year and Ruby View 
performed on target!!



February

■ Contract started February 1st and there was 
no time to waste- we got right to work!

■ Operational Transition Month
■ Transfer utilities
■ Install POS

■ Hired key positions and began hiring seasonal 
hourly associates

■ Begin to acquire necessary FF&E (Furniture, 
Fixtures & Equipment) to facilitate the 
business

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



March
■ Started with golf opening Saturday 3/6 and food and 

beverage opened Friday 3/19

■ March was quite typical of our lovely Northern 
Nevada

– Opened course 3/6, closed due to snow 
3/11, Beautiful weekend 3/27&28 and 
hosted nearly 250 golfers!

■ Monday 3/29 high of 43 and windy-
hosted 12 golfers…..Northern Nevada

– All in all, good things happening, merchandise 
starting to come in and grill fully open with 
encouraging business levels of what's to 
come

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



April
■ Masters back in April - Things are getting back to 

normal!!!
■ Very encouraging start of the month with over 130 

golfers each day for Masters weekend

■ Wednesday 4/14- CLOSED FOR SNOW,  nothing new 
and plug on

■ Weekends have been busy and when the weather is 
cooperating, we are busy!

■ Finished the month we nearly 2,500 rounds and we 
are rolling

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



May
■ May started off fast and furious averaging 

over 110 rounds a day for the first 3 weeks 
and then we got some much-needed rain- NO 
complaints, we needed it

■ Finished month with over 3,000 rounds, great 
start to the season!!

– Averaging $1,300 a day in green fees
– Driving Range staying busy with a daily 

average of $233
– Food and Beverage sales establishing 

positive trend with daily average sales 
close to $900

– This is a very optimistic start!!! 

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



June- HOLD YOUR HAT, THIS JUST GOT 
TURNED UP A KNOTCH!!!! 
■ May trends flowing right into June with very solid average 

daily revenues

■ Second week of June….Miners Expo…… THIS.  WAS.  
AWESOME!

– HUGE SUCCESS FOR THE CLUB AND CLIENT VERY 
HAPPY!

– We didn't host on driving range due to high winds-
pulled it off on patio and mad scramble to host more 
than 500 guests!

– Operationally challenging but so rewarding to exceed 
expectations- staff was exhausted at end of week

– DGM brought in 8-10 staff to facilitate event

■ June was by far our busiest month averaging over 130 
golfers a day and nearly $7,300 average daily revenue!!!

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



July
■ Ruby View is busy, tee times are starting at 

6:30AM in comparison to 9AM the previous 
season and people seem elated with the 
additional access to the golf course

– Average daily greens fees over $1,800
– Driving Range staying busy with over $240 

daily average
– The Grill is humming along with a daily 

average of over $1,000!
– Ended the month hosting over 3,700 

rounds of golf! 

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



August

■ Days are getting shorter but daily trends are 
continuing and solid business average 
business levels

– Hosted nearly 3,400 rounds
– Average daily green fees still above 

$1,700
– Driving range still averaging well over 

$200 a day
– The Grill still over $1,000 a day
– Things are good and progressing nicely!

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



September
■ Fall is in the air and hours of operations are 

beginning to become noticeable shorter due to 
daylight

■ Revenues getting “shorter” too
– Hosted just over 2,700 rounds
– Average daily green fees dropped to just 

over $1,200($500 drop to that of a month 
ago!)

– Driving range drops to just over $150 daily 
average

– The Grill drops under $1,000 a day for the 
first time in 3 months

– All key indicators that the season is 
winding down

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



October
■ The end of season is near…

– Hosted just over 1,500 rounds
– Average daily green fees dropped in half of that of September 

and just over $600 daily
– Driving range drops under $100 daily average for the first time 

since we opened in March
– The Grill drops under $600 a day for the first time since April
– Been a good year….we don’t want it to end….so we extended it 

after numerous customer requests!

■ Met with staff in September to discuss extending the season 
knowing we are $34K ahead of NOI budget

– Many requests were coming to leave the Grill open year-round, 
so we listened, and we granted the wishes of the customer

– We developed a plan to have the golf shop, driving range and 
Grill open 5 days a week thru the month of November and we 
would closely watch revenue numbers to see if we would 
continue past November
■ We were also motivated to stay open to generate some holiday 

party business

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



October Continued….
■ Golf Course closed 10/31 but before that 

happened, we hosted our first Member 
appreciation party on 10/30

– Party was not budgeted but we felt 
strongly to show our love to those who 
support the club all year

– Had close to 60 members 
participating

– We hosted drinks and passed 
appetizers

– This event was well received, and we 
appreciated all the positive 
comments from the members.

– We plan to have this event annually!

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



November
■ At the creation of the budget, we forecasted being closed 

10/31 so we had no budget created for November

■ We limited our hours of operations to Thursday thru 
Monday to allow for a football crowd in the grill

– Started off good but as soon as weather got cold, so 
did the business levels

– Finished November generating just under $4K in the 
Grill

■ Driving Range and Golf Shop also had limited hours 5 days 
a week 10am-4pm for the month generating just under 
$1,500 in gross revenue for the month

■ November had gross sales in excess of $5K for the 
property but did not support the continued opening and 
staffing of the Grill

– We closed the grill after Thanksgiving except for 
private party bookings

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



December
■ Weather hit early and great moisture for the golf 

course

■ We continue to have 5-day golf shop operations 
facilitating sales calls

■ Hosted only one holiday party and facility 
generated just over $3,000 in gross revenue

■ While November and December only generated just 
over $8,500 if all goes the same next year, we are 
going to recommend staying open again

– It was a good thing!
– Kept staff working and guests at the club 

longer in the year than ever before 
– We will continue to look for opportunities to 

extend the season each and every year!

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



2021 RUBY 
VIEW UPDATE
SALES AND MARKETING



MARKETING  & 
GOLF 
PROMOTIONS 
REVIEW

§ NEW Ruby View Website

§ Facebook Page created

§ Reno Aces cross promotion

§ Scorpions Banner in Reno

§ Koozie Promotion at all DGM 
properties

§ Channel 4 and Fox 11 media 
campaign

§ Continue Elko Radio ad 
messaging

§ Established database for email 
marketing

§ GolfingNV magazine advertising

§ Cross Promotion with existing 
DGM Database

§ GolfNow Marketing Platform

§ Email marketing to Salt 
Lake City / Boise market

§ Featured listing on 
GolfNow.com

§ Database capture of all 
online bookings



Marketing  & Golf 
Promotions Review
§ New website launched on March 1
§ We anticipate continued growth in website 

visits throughout the golf season
§ This will provide a baseline for measuring 

interest in Ruby View year over year
§ Thursdays and Fridays are the most 

popular days for website visits



2021 Ruby View update

LET’S DIVE INTO THE NUMBERS…..

But before I do, I want to remind my lovely audience 
that when we first presented our forecast there were 
some doubters……

Just sayin! Ha! Let’s get to the details!!



GOLF COURSE membership sales
■ Overall pass sales were positive (2020 numbers supported by data in RFP)

– Membership Fees in 2020 were $199,723 and for 2021 were at $210,800 
■ 218 Single Passes
■ 74 Senior Passes
■ 60 Junior Passes
■ 3 Active Military Passes
■ 2 Young Adult

– Cart Shed Storage Rental in 2020 was $35,473 and for 2021 were at $37,948

2021 RUBY VIEW UPDATE



2021 Ruby View update
§ Ruby View had highest green fee revenue in 2021 than the previous 

5 years beating last year by nearly $150K!!!!
§ Ruby View also breached a 5 year high in 2021 in Tournament 

revenue and crushed 2020 by over $55K!



2021 Ruby View Update
§ In the combined revenue streams that the city 

measured in the RFP including Green fees, Cart 
rentals, passes, cart sheds, path usage and 
tournaments…..

§ Ruby view in 2021 accomplished a 5-year high 
by over $50k in gross revenue and nearly 
$300K more than last year!!!!

WHAT A YEAR!!!!



2021 Ruby View update
§ New to the city and in our agreement for 2021 was the 

overall profit and loss responsibility

§ Previous lease holder retained revenue from driving range 
and the profits from F&B and Merchandise

§ In 2021 the city of Elko generated more income from Ruby 
that is had in the previous 5 years
§ Driving range and Profits from merchandise and F&B 

exceeded an additional $200K in revenue never 
collected by the city before this year!!!
§ So not only was it a good year in our key 

comparable line items, but this was also the 
bonus that made our agreement different than 
how it had been done at Ruby View in the past!!!!



2021 Ruby View Update



Conclusion

We stand before you today proud of our 
work and honored for your trust in 

leading Ruby View into its finest years!



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to reclassify William Brad Burnham, 
Facilities Maintenance Technician, to Electrician, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION.

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Personnel

4. Time Required: 10 minutes

5. Background Information: William Brad Burnham, Facilities Maintenance Technician in 
the Facilities Department, has worked at the City of Elko since April 2020. Staff requests 
that Mr. Burnham be reclassified to Electrician (Grade 13 of OE3 Hourly Wage 
Schedule) which more accurately reflects the duties he currently performs. Over time, 
Mr. Burnham's responsibilities have expanded to include the job duties of Electrician.

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $1,500
Budget amount available: $1,500
Fund name: General Fund - Facilities Dept

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Electrician position description

9. Recommended Motion: Approval of the position reclassification as presented.

10. Prepared by: Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName
>

<#DistributionEmail
>

<#DistributionFax
>

<#DistributionMailing
>



City of Elko, Nevada – Employment Position Description

Department: Facility Maintenance
Title: Electrician

FLSA Non-Exempt Position

DEFINITION

Reporting to the Facility Maintenance Superintendent; performs skilled work in 
the repair and maintenance of City owned buildings and facilities, which require 
electrical work for operation and general upkeep.  Incumbents in this class 
handle electrical wiring, circuits, breakers, fuses, switches, and relays; performs 
maintenance and repair of traffic signals and street lights, pumps, motor control 
systems, and other installations. Troubleshoots and repairs electro-mechanical 
and solid state controllers, variable frequency drives, ramp starters, and 
programmable logic controllers.  In any assignment the employee must perform 
work safely and efficiently, occasionally under adverse weather or otherwise 
undesirable conditions.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED

May supervise lower level classed employees within the department.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED

Assignments are received from the Facility Maintenance Superintendent who 
inspects work in progress and upon completion; employees are expected, 
however, to proceed to assigned tasks without constant supervision.

EXAMPLES OF IMPORTANT AND ESSENTIAL DUTIES

Incumbents in this class work as a team member on assigned projects or 
independently as needed;

Incumbents operate all types of equipment associated with electrical installation 
and maintenance;

Makes scheduled and emergency repairs to City of Elko traffic signals and 
controllers;

Performs maintenance on all electrical components in all City owned facilities;

Installs wiring and outlets to provide electrical service in remodeling projects;



Installs, monitors, and maintains control panels, variable frequency drives, and 
circuitry at City pump stations, wells, and water reclamation facilities;

Works with the City maintenance carpenter and other required craftsmen and 
professionals in completing electrical work in multi-tasking maintenance, 
remodeling, or new construction projects.

OTHER JOB RELATED DUTIES

Performs related work as required by the Facilities Maintenance Supervisor, or 
his superiors.

JOB RELATED AND ESSENTIAL QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Knowledge of the methods, techniques, tools, and equipment of electrical 
installation;

Knowledge of the occupational hazards and safety precautions required in the 
safe and efficient performance of assigned duties;

Mechanical aptitude and knowledge of electrical components used in City 
facilities.

Knowledge of high pressure sodium and metal halide lighting;

Knowledge and ability to correctly bend and thread various types of conduit;

Possess a working knowledge of National Electrical and Local Building Codes;

Considerable knowledge of the principals of electrical theory as applied to 
electrical circuits and wiring systems, and have the ability to apply this knowledge 
to work situations;

Have an adequate working knowledge of current safety practices, procedures, 
and regulations to perform the job safely.

Skill to:

Skill in adjustment and minor maintenance;

Skill in troubleshooting and repair of electro-mechanical and solid state controls, 
variable frequency drives, ramp starters, and programmable logic controllers

Ability to:



Ability to understand and carry out written instructions;

Possess the physical strength and agility to perform the job duties assigned.

Ability to work out of doors, frequently under adverse working conditions.

Experience and Training Guidelines:

Experience:

Three (3) years experience in electrical installations, maintenance and 
remodeling to include a minimum of 2,000 hours of Commercial Electrical 
experience;

Experience in using man lifts and bucket trucks;

Experience in the operation and maintenance of equipment common to traffic 
light installation and maintenance;

Experience in troubleshooting and repair of electro-mechanical and solid state 
controls, variable frequency drives, ramp starters, and programmable logic 
controllers.

Education and Training:

High school graduation or equivalent;

Participation in a journeyman electrician apprenticeship program

Licenses or Certificates:

Must possess a valid State of Nevada driver’s license;

Additional consideration may be given to those who possess and maintain a valid 
Journeyman Electricians License or Certificate from any state that recognizes 
such license or certificate.

A Master Electrician License and commercial driver’s license are desirable.

Special Requirements:
Essential duties require the following physical skills and work environment.

Ability to work out of doors, frequently under adverse working conditions;

Possess the physical strength and agility to perform the job duties assigned.



City of Elko, Nevada – Employment Position Description

Department: Facility Maintenance
Title: Electrician

FLSA Non-Exempt Position

DEFINITION

Reporting to the Facility Maintenance Superintendent; performs skilled work in 
the repair and maintenance of City owned buildings and facilities, which require 
electrical work for operation and general upkeep.  Incumbents in this class 
handle electrical wiring, circuits, breakers, fuses, switches, and relays; performs 
maintenance and repair of traffic signals and street lights, pumps, motor control 
systems, and other installations. Troubleshoots and repairs electro-mechanical 
and solid state controllers, variable frequency drives, ramp starters, and 
programmable logic controllers.  In any assignment the employee must perform 
work safely and efficiently, occasionally under adverse weather or otherwise 
undesirable conditions.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED

May supervise lower level classed employees within the department.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED

Assignments are received from the Facility Maintenance Superintendent who 
inspects work in progress and upon completion; employees are expected, 
however, to proceed to assigned tasks without constant supervision.

EXAMPLES OF IMPORTANT AND ESSENTIAL DUTIES

Incumbents in this class work as a team member on assigned projects or 
independently as needed;

Incumbents operate all types of equipment associated with electrical installation 
and maintenance;

Makes scheduled and emergency repairs to City of Elko traffic signals and 
controllers;

Performs maintenance on all electrical components in all City owned facilities;

Installs wiring and outlets to provide electrical service in remodeling projects;



Installs, monitors, and maintains control panels, variable frequency drives, and 
circuitry at City pump stations, wells, and water reclamation facilities;

Works with the City maintenance carpenter and other required craftsmen and 
professionals in completing electrical work in multi-tasking maintenance, 
remodeling, or new construction projects.

OTHER JOB RELATED DUTIES

Performs related work as required by the Facilities Maintenance Supervisor, or 
his superiors.

JOB RELATED AND ESSENTIAL QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Knowledge of the methods, techniques, tools, and equipment of electrical 
installation;

Knowledge of the occupational hazards and safety precautions required in the 
safe and efficient performance of assigned duties;

Mechanical aptitude and knowledge of electrical components used in City 
facilities.

Knowledge of high pressure sodium and metal halide lighting;

Knowledge and ability to correctly bend and thread various types of conduit;

Possess a working knowledge of National Electrical and Local Building Codes;

Considerable knowledge of the principals of electrical theory as applied to 
electrical circuits and wiring systems, and have the ability to apply this knowledge 
to work situations;

Have an adequate working knowledge of current safety practices, procedures, 
and regulations to perform the job safely.

Skill to:

Skill in adjustment and minor maintenance;

Skill in troubleshooting and repair of electro-mechanical and solid state controls, 
variable frequency drives, ramp starters, and programmable logic controllers

Ability to:



Ability to understand and carry out written instructions;

Possess the physical strength and agility to perform the job duties assigned.

Ability to work out of doors, frequently under adverse working conditions.

Experience and Training Guidelines:

Experience:

Three (3) years experience in electrical installations, maintenance and 
remodeling to include a minimum of 2,000 hours of Commercial Electrical 
experience;

Experience in using man lifts and bucket trucks;

Experience in the operation and maintenance of equipment common to traffic 
light installation and maintenance;

Experience in troubleshooting and repair of electro-mechanical and solid state 
controls, variable frequency drives, ramp starters, and programmable logic 
controllers.

Education and Training:

High school graduation or equivalent;

Participation in a journeyman electrician apprenticeship program

Licenses or Certificates:

Must possess a valid State of Nevada driver’s license;

Additional consideration may be given to those who possess and maintain a valid 
Journeyman Electricians License or Certificate from any state that recognizes 
such license or certificate.

A Master Electrician License and commercial driver’s license are desirable.

Special Requirements:
Essential duties require the following physical skills and work environment.

Ability to work out of doors, frequently under adverse working conditions;

Possess the physical strength and agility to perform the job duties assigned.



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to award a bid for the WRF West 
Primary Clarifier Recoating & Repairs Project 2021, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Appropriation

4. Time Required: 3 Minutes

5. Background Information: Council directed Staff to solicit bids for the WRF West Primary 
Clarifier Recoating & Repairs Project 2021 on September 14, 2021. Bids were received 
on February 14, 2022 and opened at 3:00 pm. We received two compliant bids with MMI 
being low bid in the amount of $140,100.00. DJ

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $140,100.00
Budget amount available: $190,000.00
Fund name: Sewer/WRF

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Bid Tally Sheet

9. Recommended Motion: Move to award a bid for the WRF West Primary Clarifier 
Recoating & Repairs Project 2021, in the amount of $140,100.00 to MMI.

10. Prepared by: Dale Johnson, Utilities Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName
>

<#DistributionEmail
>

<#DistributionFax
>

<#DistributionMailing
>



CITY OF ELKO
BID TABULATION

FOR
PROJECT NAME: 2021-2022 WRF Primary Clarifier Project

2/14/2022 @ 3:00 PM

Name MMI Name RDC / Resource Deve.
Address 3240 S. 37th Ave. Address 1050 Linda Way

City State Phoenix, AZ City State Sparks, NV 
Phone No. 602-272-6000 Phone No. 775-356-8004

No. Bid Item Description Quantity Unit Unit
Price Total Amount Unit Price Total Amount

1
Mobilization  &  Demobilization  Labor,  Equipment,
and  Materials  to  and  from  the  Project  Site  @:
_______________ Per Lump Sum Amount.

1 LS $ 15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2

The Contractor shall Clean all Clarifier Surfaces to
be coated prior to sand blasting the surfaces using
high pressure water jetting equipment, or similar
methods @: ______________ Per Lump Sum
Amount.

1 LS $ 5,000.00 $5,000.00 $9,600.00 $9,600.00

3

Provide and Perform Abrasive Sand Blast
Cleaning meeting SSPC-SP10/NACE 2 “Near
White Blast Cleaning” of all Clarifier Submerged
Metal Surfaces @: ________________________
Per Square Foot Aera.

2000 SF $ 25.00 $50,000.00 $45.00 $90,000.00

4

Provide and Perform Abrasive Sand Blast
Cleaning meeting SSPC-SP6/NACE 3
“Commercial Blast Cleaning” of the Metal Bridge
Surfaces located above the High Water Level @:
_________________________per Square Foot of
Surface Area.

500 SF $ 25.00 $12,500.00 $35.00 $17,500.00

5

Provide Materials, Labor & Equipment to
coat/paint all metal surfaces of the West Primary
Clarifier, as specified, @: ____________Per
Square Foof of surface Area.

2500 SF $ 21.24 $53,100.00 $33.00 $82,500.00

6

Third Party Paint/Coating mil thickness Tests &
Test Report, as specified in Section E. on Page 79
in the Project Technical Specifications @
_________________ Per Lump Sum Amount.

1 LS $ 2,500.00 $2,500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

7

Project Cleanup – Provide all Materials, Labor and
Equipment required to clean up the Jobsite after
completion of the work – see @:
_____________________ Per Lump Sum
Amount.

1 LS $ 2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00

TOTALS $140,100.00 $224,100.00

GOOD COMPLIANT BID GOOD COMPLIANT BID



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible award of a contract for Federal Aviation 
Administration Grant # AIP 3-32-0005-059-2022 Acquire ARFF Vehicle (Class 4 - 1,500 
Gallon) and Acquire ARFF Ancillary Equipment to Jviation, Inc., and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Appropriation

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information: On October 22nd, 2021, City Council authorized Staff to solicit 
statement of qualifications to acquire ARFF Truck and Ancillary Equipment. The Request 
for Qualifications was issued on December 16th 2021. On January 20, 2022 bid 
proposals were opened. Two (2) proposals were received. Two Engineers and Jviation, 
Inc., submitted proposals for review. After review of the proposals Staff recommends 
awarding a contract to Jviation, Inc. for the purpose of acquiring ARFF Equipment for the 
Elko Regional Airport. After successful contract negotiations, Staff will bring the 
contract back to council for final approval. As a reminder, FAA Grant Award Allocations 
are funded based on bids. JF

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: 1,000,000.00 Federal
Budget amount available: 62,500.00 Local Match
Fund name: Airport Enterprise

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: RFQ, Scoring Sheet

9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve Jviation, Inc. as the firm selected to provide 
services for Airport improvement program (AIP 59) Acquire ARFF Vehicle and 
Ancillary Equipment.

10. Prepared by: Jim Foster, Airport Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution:

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



 

#1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 #8 #9 TOTAL TO Total Jviation

Jviation 10 20 20 10 9 8 10 10 10 107

TO 9 20 20 10 9 8 8 10 10 104

Jviation 9 19 20 10 10 9 10 10 10 107

TO 8 19 20 10 10 9 0 10 9 95

Jviation 10 20 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 110

TO 10 20 20 10 10 10 0 10 10 100

Jviation 10 20 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 110

TO 10 18 20 10 10 10 5 10 10 103

Total Overall 402 434

ARFF RFQ Summary Review Scoring Sheet

Jim Foster

Carol Genseal

Dakota Weins

Jeff Winrod



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

1 

 

 

 

ELKO REGIONAL AIRPORT  

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

Acquiring Airport Rescue Fire Fighting Vehicle 

and Ancillary Equipment. 

 

ISSUE DATE:  
December 16, 2021 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

2 

 

I. INVITATION TO SUBMIT 

The Elko Regional Airport (“EKO”) invites the submission of Qualifications from firms to 
provide professional aviation services in acquiring ARFF Vehicle and Ancillary 
Equipment. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and documents are available from the City 
of Elko, Clerk’s Office, 1751 College Ave, Elko, Nevada 89801 or may be obtained 
through the City of Elko’s website. 

Submissions must be received in the City Clerk’s office no later than 3:00 PM PST 
on January 20, 2022.   Late submissions will not be accepted. 

Firms must present evidence that they are fully competent and have the necessary 
facilities, experience and resources to fulfill the conditions of the agreement which will 
ensure a high standard of service is afforded EKO.  Firms should have extensive 
knowledge and experience in equipment procurement, Federal Aviation Administration 
policy and design guidelines to be considered qualified.  Consideration shall be given to 
such matters as integrity, record of past performance, technical resources and 
accessibility to other necessary resources.  EKO reserves the right to reject any 
applicant which, in EKO’s opinion does not have adequate qualifications. EKO reserves 
the right to terminate selection proceedings at any time. 

II. INFORMATION FOR RESPONDENTS 
 
The Elko Regional Airport is located in Elko County, Nevada and is owned and operated 
by the City of Elko. EKO is a non-hub, commercial service airport on 700 acres with 
over 10,000 enplanements annually. The airport has one (1) commercial service 
Runway 6/24 and one (1) general aviation Runway 12/30. Currently EKO is served by 
SkyWest Airlines with two (2) flights daily to Salt Lake City, Utah. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

3 

 

III. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
These professional services are primarily for an AIP funded procurement of equipment 
(as defined in AC 150/5100-14E (current series).  The project, and affiliated deliverables 
anticipated to be completed under this contract are: 
 
The City of Elko desires the completion of the following products as follows: 
 
Acquire One Airport Rescue Fire Fighting Vehicle (CLASS 4 1,500 GALLON) and 
ANCILARY EQUIUPMENT. 

 
This project consists of the procurement, through the competitive bidding process, of one 
ARFF vehicle and associated ancillary equipment.  The proposed vehicle will be Class 4, 
4x4, with agent capacities of 1,500 usable gallons of water and 500 pounds of sodium-
based dry chemical agent. The ARFF vehicle shall meet the guidelines established in AC 
150/5220-10E, Guide Specification for Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Vehicles, 
and the National Fire Protection Association Standard (NFPA) 414, 2012 edition, 
Standard for Aircraft Rescue and Fire-Fighting Vehicle 
 
The Ancillary Equipment includes items not addressed by the standard ARFF vehicle 
specification.  This equipment shall meet the guidelines established in AC 150/5210-14B, 
Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting, Equipment, Tools and Clothing.  
 

The ARFF Vehicle and Ancillary Equipment will be bid and awarded as separate 
schedules.   
 
This project will result in the following deliverables: 
 

 One ARFF Vehicle  

 Ancillary Equipment 
 
 

All work shall be performed in accordance with current FAA advisory circulars, guidance, 
and policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

4 

 

IV. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 
 
EKO has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) program in 
accordance with regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (“DOT”), 49 CFR 
Part 26.  It is the policy of EKO to ensure that DBEs, as defined in Part 26, have an equal 
opportunity to receive and participate in contract opportunities.  It is also our policy: 
 

1. To ensure non-discrimination in the award and administration of opportunities 
for professional contracts; 

2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for 
opportunities for professional contracts; 

3. To ensure that only firms that fully meet Part 26’s eligibility standards are 
permitted to participate as DBEs at our airport; 

4. To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in opportunities for 
professional contracts at our airport; and 

5. To provide appropriate flexibility to our airport in establishing and providing 
opportunities for DBEs. 

 
EKO will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, 
or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and performance 
of any contract on the basis of race, color, sex or national origin. 
 
EKO, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 
252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that 
it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, 
disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit 
bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of 
race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
The successful Respondent shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, or sex in the performance of any contract entered into as a result of this RFQ. The 
successful Respondent shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the 
award and administration of any contract entered into as a result of this RFQ. 
 
If the Respondent is a certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”), please 
provide evidence of certification with your submission.   
 
EKO encourages all firms to subcontract portions of the work to DBE firms and to include 
DBE firms on their teams, even when they might otherwise perform the work with their 
own forces. 
 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

5 

 

V. FORMAT FOR SUBMISSIONS 
 
Please format your response to this RFQ in the following order to facilitate comparisons 
between respondents:   
 
1. Transmittal/Cover Letter.  Please include the following information in your 

transmittal/cover letter: 

a. History of the Firm and its experience; 

b. Names of the principals in the firm; 

c. Locations of offices where work will be performed; 

d. List of personnel and summary of relevant experience. 

2. Project Team.  Provide the name, address and telephone number of one person who 
will serve as the project manager responsible for the timely provision of all services 
and to whom all communications will be directed.  Provide two references of previous 
projects on which the individual identified as project manager has worked.  For each 
project, provide the name, title and current telephone number of the reference.  In 
addition, provide brief summaries of recent project experience of other project team 
members who would be responsible for fulfilling any requests by EKO.  Brief resumes 
of the project team should be included.  Please include a list of other clients the Project 
Team is currently providing services for. 

3. Firm's Experience.  Provide a detailed explanation of your firm’s experience as it 
relates to the Scope of Work.  Your explanation should include one example of a 
similar project with an airport that is approximately the same size as the Elko Regional 
Airport.  

4. Key Issues.  Describe what you believe would be the key issues your firm would have 
to address if it were retained as an Advisor to EKO. 

5. References.  Provide three references for your consulting team.  The references 
should be for relevant projects and should include the name, title, address and phone 
number of the client and the capacity in which you served each client.  Provide a full 
client list for the last three years.  

6. Non-Discrimination. Provide a copy of your firm’s non-discrimination policy.  

7. Proposal Form.  Please complete the proposal form attached hereto. 

8. Insurance.  Provide evidence of ability to obtain professional liability insurance.  
Acceptable evidence includes letters from the Respondent’s insurance company (Best 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

6 

 

A Rating) dated no earlier than two weeks before submittal deadline date and signed 
by an officer of the insurer and security provider. 

 
Provide evidence that Respondent has not had its insurance coverage (on current or 
past operations) cancelled during the last 10 years – and if it has –provide an 
explanation as to why, and provide the name/address and name of insurer’s contact 
person (including phone number for the contact person). 

 
VI.EVALUATION OF SUBMISSIONS 

This RFQ will be awarded to the responsible firm who in EKO’s sole judgment is deemed 
most qualified.  The selection shall be based on a comparative analysis of the professional 
qualifications necessary for satisfactory performances of the services required and shall 
satisfy requirements for open and free competition.  EKO shall appoint a selection 
committee to evaluate potential firms and shall ensure that the members of the selection 
committee are kept free of pressures, both internal and external, and that they have no 
conflicts of interest, real or apparent.  The selection committee may conduct interviews 
and inquiries as desired and shall make a recommendation to the Elko City Council. The 
Elko City Council must approve the final selection.  

Each submission received will be evaluated based on the information required as set forth 
in Section V above, pursuant to the following selection criteria and rating system.   

Selection Criteria and Numerical Rating 

Selection Criteria 
Rating 
Points 

I. Overall Proposal Quality and Completeness of Information provided 10 

II. Capability to perform all or most aspects of the projects and recent 
experience in airport projects comparable to the proposed tasks 

20 

III. Project Team’s professional qualifications and experience and 
availability; their reputation and professional integrity and 
competence; and their knowledge of FAA regulations, policies and 
procedures 

20 

IV. Current workload and demonstrated ability to meet schedules or 
deadlines 

10 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

7 

 

V. Demonstrated understanding of EKO’s project 10 

VI. Location of offices 10 

VII. Respondent’s past history, if any, with EKO 10 

VIII. References 10 

   IX.   Affirmative Action & DBE Utilization 10 

TOTAL POINTS 110 

 

VII. INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS 
 

The deadline for submissions is 3:00 PM PST on January 20, 2022. Submissions must 
be received in the City Clerk’s Office 1751 College Ave. Elko, Nevada 89801. Each 
submission must be in the form set forth in the RFQ, including all required Attachments. 
Late submissions will not be accepted. 
 
EKO requires three (3) copies of the submission materials. The provided forms must be 
utilized. It is also highly encouraged for Respondents to be practical and economical in 
presenting the information requested.   
 

 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

It is the intent of this RFQ to describe the services being sought in sufficient detail to 
secure qualified Proposals. Proposals will be evaluated based upon qualifications and 
experience for the proposed projects, using a weighted scoring method. Proposals not 
conforming to the requested format or not in compliance with the specifications will not 
receive full scoring. 

The Elko Regional Airport reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received and 
if all proposals are rejected, to re-advertise under the same or new specifications, or to 
make such award as in the judgment of EKO best meets its requirements.  EKO reserves 
the right to waive any formalities, irregularities and/or technicalities which are not of a 
substantial nature and to accept the proposal which is in the best interest of the City of 
Elko, Elko Regional Airport.  EKO reserves the right to determine what constitutes any 
and all formalities, irregularities or technicalities. EKO shall not be obligated to respond 
to any Proposal submitted or legally bound in any manner whatsoever by the submission 
of a Proposal. 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

8 

 

Before a contract will be awarded, EKO may conduct reference investigations as is 
necessary to evaluate and determine the performance record and ability of the top ranked 
Respondent(s) to perform the size and type of work to be contracted, and to determine 
the quality of the service being offered. By submitting a proposal, you authorize EKO to 
conduct reference investigations as needed. 

 
Any and all Agreements arising out of this RFQ and negotiations that follow shall not be 
binding or valid against EKO, its officers, employees or agents unless executed by EKO 
and the Successful Respondent in accordance with applicable laws. 

The submission of a Proposal shall be considered evidence that the Respondent has 
investigated all the conditions as described in the RFQ Documents and the Respondent 
is aware of the circumstances and conditions involved. The attention of the Respondent 
is specifically directed to, and the Respondent will be conclusively presumed to have read 
and become familiar with all the RFQ Documents. No claim for adjustment of the 
provisions of the Agreement shall be honored after submission on the ground that 
Respondents were not fully informed as to the conditions which exist. 

The Respondent will be responsible for all costs (including site visits where needed) 
incurred in preparing or responding to this RFQ.  All materials and documents submitted 
in response to the RFQ become the property of EKO and will not be returned. 
 
No verbal interpretation made to any Respondent as to the meaning or consequence of 
any portion of the RFQ Documents shall be considered binding. Every request for 
clarification of the RFQ Documents shall be made in writing and submitted to City Clerk’s 
Office by email to kwooldridge@elkocitynv.gov.  All such requests must be received at 
least ten (10) days before the established time for receipt of Proposals. Any response by 
EKO to a request by a Respondent for clarification will be made in the form of an 
addendum to the RFQ Documents and will be sent to all parties to whom the RFQ 
Documents have been issued not later than five (5) calendar days prior to the deadline 
for receiving Proposals. All Addenda so issued shall become part of the RFQ Documents. 
EKO will not be responsible for any oral instructions, interpretations or explanations.  

 

 

 

 

 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

9 

 

Disqualification and Rejection of Proposal: Any of the following causes may be 
considered as sufficient for the disqualification of a Respondent and the rejection of the 
Proposal: 

 Submission of more than one Proposal hereunder by an individual, firm, or corporation 
under the same or different names; 

 Evidence of collusion among Respondents; 

 A Respondent’s default or arrearage under any previous existing agreement with 
EKO; 

 Existence of any unresolved claims between the Respondent and EKO; 

 EKO reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals for any reason or for no reason. 
 

Withdrawal of Proposal: No Proposal may be withdrawn after it has been submitted to 
EKO unless the Respondent so requests by letter or email and such request is received 
by EKO prior to EKO’s time set for receiving Proposals. No Proposal may be withdrawn 
after the scheduled due date for a period of one hundred and twenty days. 

Respondent to whom a contract is awarded shall within thirty (30) days of the date of the 
receipt of the final Agreement negotiated between the Respondent and EKO deliver said 
Agreement fully executed. All such documents must be executed and delivered by the 
Respondent and approved by EKO before the Agreement will be executed and returned 
to the Respondent by EKO. EKO reserves the right to cancel the award without liability, 
at any time before the Agreement has been fully executed by both parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

10 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FORM 
 

This form must be completed in full. Indicate “N/A” where applicable. 
 
1.  Respondent:  

Name of Respondent:  _______________________________________ 
 
Dba if applicable:____________________________________________ 
 
Contact Name:______________________________________________ 
 
Contact Title:_______________________________________________ 
 
Address:___________________________________________________ 

 
Business Phone Number:______________________________________ 
 
Business FAX Number:________________________________________ 
 
E-mail:_____________________________________________________ 

 
Corporation   ____ Yes   ______No 
 
Corporate Name and Address:___________________________________ 
 
State and Date of Incorporation:__________________________________ 
 
Registered to do business in Nevada   ___ Yes  ___  No 
 
Title, Phone number, Fax and e-mail address:________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
LLC  Yes _____ No_____ 
 
Name and Address:______________________________________________ 
 
State and Date of LLC Registration:______________________________________ 
 
Registered to do business in Nevada   ___ Yes  ___  No 
 
Title, Phone number, Fax and e-mail address:____________________________ 
 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

11 

 

Names of Members:_________________________________________________ 
 
Partnership            Yes   _____  No ____ 
 
Name and Address:__________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Organization:_________________________________________________ 
 
General Partnership or Limited 
Partnership:__________________________________ 
 
State of 
Registration:___________________________________________________ 
 
Registered to do business in Nevada   ___ Yes  ___  No 
Sole Proprietorship               Yes______  No_____ 
 
Name and 
Address:_______________________________________________________ 
 
How long in 
business:_____________________________________________________ 
 
Registered to do business in Nevada   ___ Yes  ___  No 
 

Describe a brief history of the Respondent entity. Note any changes in the Respondents 
name and ownership structure and any other dbas under which the company has been 
doing business. Please indicate airport experience if any. 
 
2. Financial: 

List three (3) credit references, including at least one banking reference. 
      Name                               Address                                                       Telephone 
Number 
1. ________________________________________________________________

_______ 
 
2. ________________________________________________________________

________ 
 
3. ________________________________________________________________

________ 
 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

12 

 

Please indicate whether the Respondent and any joint venture or affiliate entities 
have ever been involved in one of the following actions: 
 
File a petition in bankruptcy court   
                       Yes:__________       No_________ 
Filed for protection from creditors in bankruptcy court 
                       Yes _______             No________________ 
Had involuntary proceedings filed in bankruptcy court 
                       Yes   ______             No_______________ 
Have an expectation of doing any of the three (3) actions above in the next six (6) 
months? 
                        Yes  ______             No ___________________ 
 
If you have answered yes to any of the above, please briefly describe below the 
circumstances and status of each occurrence. 
 
Has Respondent defaulted on a loan or a contract or performance agreement for the 
delivery of services/product at an airport or other facility? If it has defaulted, it shall 
provide an explanation as to why and provide contact information for the landlord, 
airport or client/contractor, or bank/financial institution with whom it contracted and 
defaulted. 
 
List any judgments against Respondent or any litigation pending against the 
Respondent and describe circumstances. Also list any judgments against 
Respondent which have been satisfied within the last five (5) years and explain. 
 
List any outstanding tax liens against the Respondent and explain. 
 
Respondent shall provide information as to whether any of its officers and/or 
principals have been convicted of a felony or whether the Respondent us currently 
involved in legal proceedings regarding its performance or delivery of its services to 
a vendor/service provider, landlord, airport owner or its agent or other party. If it is, it 
shall provide a brief narrative describing the situation. 

 
 
This Qualification is being submitted in response to the Request for Qualifications for 
Equipment procurement. Defined terms below shall have the meanings given them in 
the Request for Qualification. 
 
The undersigned having (1) examined carefully the RFQ document; (2) become familiar 
with all terms and conditions specified in the RFQ document; and (4) completed 
answers to all forms and responded fully to the RFQ document requests for information. 



                     City of Elko 

                                      Elko Regional Airport 

                                975 Terminal Way 

                            Elko, NV  89801 
 

 

13 

 

 
Conditions of Proposal Submission 
Submission of Proposal constitutes a firm offer to the City of Elko and may be accepted 
by the City of Elko at any time prior to 120 days after deadline for submitting.  
 
Acknowledgment of the Qualification Required 
 
The undersigned represents and warrants to the Authority as follows: (a) the 
undersigned person(s) are authorized representatives of Respondent; (b) all information 
submitted by Respondent in the Qualification package is complete, accurate, and 
truthful.  
 
______________________________ Title__________________________ 
 
Printed Name__________________________ 
 
______________________________ Title__________________________ 
 
Printed Name__________________________ 
 
______________________________ Title_________________________________ 
 
Printed Name__________________________ 
 
 
 



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 2

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) funds to Elko County Recreation Board based on the Department of the 
Treasury lost revenue calculation and City Code Recreation Fund Transient 
Lodging distribution formula.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Unfinished Business

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information: The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was established 
to help states and localities address the economic and health consequences of the COVID-
19 public health emergency and its economic impacts through four categories.  One of the 
four categories states “For the provision of government services to the extent of the 
reduction in revenue due to the COVID-19 public health emergency relative to revenues 
collected in the most recent full fiscal year prior to the emergency.”  Staff used the United 
States Department of Treasury lost revenue calculation to determine the lost revenue 
specifically attributable to the transient lodging tax revenue for the 12 months ending 
December 31, 2020.  Based on this calculation staff determined the lost revenue impact on 
the local tourism organizations that receive transient tax from the Recreation Fund per the 
City Code formula. The disbursement to the Elko County Recreation Board was tabled at 
the January 25, 2022 meeting awaiting legal opinion regarding City Council members 
violating the Ethics in Government Act by voting to disburse ARPA fund to other public 
entities in which they are board members:

Elko County Recreation Board $   51,454.73

JB

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $51454.73
Budget amount available: $51454.73
Fund name:   General Fund

7. Business Impact Statement:

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: The $51,454.73 in ARPA Funds received by the City 
of Elko from the State of Nevada in July, 2021 were deposited into the General Fund.  



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 2

This distribution, if approved, will be distributed from the General Fund directly to the 
beneficiary organizations.

9. Recommended Motion: Approve disbursing $51,454.73 in American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) funds to the Elko County Recreation Board as outlined by staff based on the 
Department of the Treasury lost revenue calculation and City Code Recreation Fund 
Transient Lodging distribution formula.

10. Prepared by: Jan Baum, Finance Services Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution:

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action of a special event application from St. 
Joseph's Catholic Church for an Easter Egg Drop Off, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: Unfinished Business

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information: This item was tabled at the February 8, 2022 Council Meeting. 
St. Josephs Catholic Church is requesting to use a City Park for a Special Event in which 
a helicopter operated by El Aero will drop plastic eggs into the Park for Easter. Jim 
Foster, Airport Director was referred to 14 CFR 91.15 which states: "No pilot in 
command of a civil aircraft may allow any object to be dropped from that aircraft in flight 
that creates a hazard to persons or property. However, this section does not prohibit the 
dropping of any object if reasonable precautions are taken to avoid injury or damage to 
persons or property." Mr. Foster was also notified that if they use the main City Park, 
they may need to contact RenoFlzDo to file a congested area plan due to the trees. The 
event organizers are wiling to use any park. CC

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council

10. Prepared by: Kim Wilkinson, Administrative Assistant

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



St. Joseph’s Catholic 
Church
Easter Egg Drop 

Presented by: Mario A. Garcia



Unforgettable easter
St. Joseph would like to host an 

unforgettable easter that will become a 

yearly tradition for children and families.

●Safety 

●Family Celebration

●Fun for children



Families in our community are most important.

➔ Unexpected
A helicopter appears from the sky 
to drop the easter eggs!

➔ Emotional
Families will bond over memories 
of event.

➔ Simple
Simple event having the most impact.

A Helicopter!!



Safety



Safety Cont.



Site Details
● Pilot is familiar with the area

● Experience with similar events

● With current Risk Assessment:

○ No FSDO approval required

○ No further airport approval

○ No congested area flight plan

● Total FLight time would be minutes

● Liability Insurance  Review

○ L&p Insurance



Questions?

=
?



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 2

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
lost revenue funds to the Boys and Girls Clubs of Elko, Inc., Committee Against 
Domestic Violence (CADV), Cowboy Arts & Gear Museum, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: New Business

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information: The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was 
established to help states and localities address the economic and health consequences of 
the COVID-19 public health emergency and its economic impacts through four 
categories.  One of the four categories states “For the provision of government services to 
the extent of the reduction in revenue due to the COVID-19 public health emergency 
relative to revenues collected in the most recent full fiscal year prior to the emergency.” 
The ARPA Final rule allowed NEU’s to take a standard Lost Revenue allowance up to 
$10 million total for the entire period of performance. This revenue allowance can be 
used for any governmental services. City Staff recommends using a portion of the lost 
revenue allowance for community donations. The community donations recommended to 
council are as follows:

Boys and Girls Club of Elko, Inc. $    400,000.00
Committee Against Domestic Violence         10,000.00
Cowboy Arts & Gear Museum         44,494.00
Family Resource Center       300,000.00
Horizon Hospice       100,000.00
Igloo Recreation Center, Inc.         40,000.00
Elko County Fair Board       258,836.21

$ 1,153,330.21
JB

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 2

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council

10. Prepared by: Jan Baum, Financial Services Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution:

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Deed of Dedication for a Public 
Utility Easement, on City owned property, between APN 001-590-010 and APN 001-
590-017, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: New Business

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information: City Staff has discovered that this narrow strip of land has 
various public utilities in it, but no record of a public utility easement can be found.  The 
area is encumbered by a drainage easement, and is believed to be a City owned parcel. 
BT

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $0
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:  Deed of Dedication with Exhibits

9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the Deed of Dedication for a Public Utility

10. Prepared by: Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName
>

<#DistributionEmail
>

<#DistributionFax
>

<#DistributionMailing
>









AutoCAD SHX Text
S38°03'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
804.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD LOCATION OF THE CENTER OF SECTION 11, T 34 N, R 55 E, PER FILE NO. 162307.

AutoCAD SHX Text
US HIGHWAY 40 IDAHO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY ±20' WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF VICTORY HIGHWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 4 FILE NO. 162307

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLEN BLACK PARCEL FILE NO. 254128

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT HEREBY GRANTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
183.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
168.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
164.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXHIBIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPLAY MAP OF A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NA

AutoCAD SHX Text
-100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'











Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 2

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to select auditing firm for annual 
independent auditing services for Fiscal Years beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 
2026 per responses to Request for Qualifications.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: New Business

4. Time Required: 5 minutes

5. Background Information: Council directed Staff to solicit Requests for Qualifications 
(RFQ) from accounting firms to provide independent auditing services and to prepare the 
annual audit for the City of Elko for Fiscal Years beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 
30, 2026.  RFQ’s were received on or before January 31, 2022 and opened after 3:00pm 
on that date.  A total of two (2) RFQ’s were received and reviewed by the audit firm 
selection committee: Eide Bailly LLP and Hinton Burdick CPA’s & Advisors.  The 
auditing committee evaluated both proposals based on technical qualifications and price.  
Both firms met the technical requirements.  Pricing for the auditing services were as 
follows:
Firm Name: Eide Bailly, LLPHinton Burdick CPA’s & Advisors Fiscal Year:

2022 $85,000 $59,700
2023 $88,000 $61,425
2024 $91,000 $63,300
2025 $94,000 $65,225
2026 $97,000 $67,200

Based on review of technical requirements, pricing and prior experience the auditing 
committee recommends awarding the City of Elko annual independent auditing services to 
Hinton Burdick CPA’s and Advisors.  JB

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $59,700 in current fiscal year 2022
Budget amount available: $59,700
Fund name: General Fund

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required: 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A



Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 2

9. Recommended Motion: Move to award the services to provide independent auditing 
services and to prepare the annual audit for the City of Elko for Fiscal Years beginning 
July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2026 to Hinton Burdick CPA’s and Advisors.

10. Prepared by: Jan Baum, Financial Services Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 
Name Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address
<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>























































































































































Created on 2/15/2022                                Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to apply to NDEP to be placed on the 
priority list for Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) funding for Drinking Water and Clean 
Water Revolving Funds, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:  2/22/2022 4:00 PM - Regular Meeting

3. Agenda Category: New Business

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes

5. Background Information: The Office of Financial Assistance (OFA) is working closely 
with EPA to provide funds that will benefit water or wastewater systems for infrastructure 
needs. The State Revolving Fund programs will administer these funds based on a priority 
list administered by NDEP. The City Water and Sewer Departments would like to apply to 
be placed on the priority lists for this funding to help offset the costs of the new Revised 
Lead and Copper Rule, Tank Rehabilitations, Well Rehabs, and Wastewater related 
projects where there is a need for improved infrastructure within the city. After being 
placed on the priority list Staff will bring projects back to City Council for approval to 
apply for funding. DJ

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council.

10. Prepared by: Dale Johnson, Utilities Director

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council 
Agenda 
Distribution:Name

Email Address Fax Number Mailing Address

<#DistributionName> <#DistributionEmail> <#DistributionFax> <#DistributionMailing>



CITY OF ELKO 
WATER RIGHTS



CITY WELLS

• 17 - POTABLE WATER WELLS THAT FEED THE CITY WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM. 

• 1- NON-POTABLE CONSTRUCTION WELL (WELL 33). 

• 1- NON-POTABLE IRRIGATION WELL (GOLF COURSE WELL 1)

• 1- NON-CHLORINATED POTABLE WATER WELL (SNOWBOWL WELL) 

• 2- TEST HOLES – WEST EXIT (EXIT 298) AND WELL 39 (COPPER STREET)

WEST EXIT PROPOSED PUMPING CAPACITY 1500 – 2000 GPM. NO WATER RIGHTS 
ARE ATTACHED TO THIS POINT OF DIVERSION, AT THIS TIME.

WELL 39 DID NOT PRODUCE SIGNIFICANT CAPACITY AND WILL NOT BE FURTHER 
EXPLORED. 



WATER RIGHTS FOR ALL WELLS

• THE ANNUAL DUTY OF ALL WELLS IS 18,000 AFA (5,865,325,770 GALLONS) (11,152 GPM).

• SYSTEM PUMPING CAPACITY IS 21,267 AFA (13,176 GPM). 

• WE HAVE CURRENTLY ALLOCATED OVER HALF OF OUR 18,000 AFA IN WILL SERVES TO EXISTING AND 
PROPOSED CUSTOMERS. 

• THE PLACE OF USE FOR THESE WATER RIGHTS ARE WITH IN THE ELKO CITY LIMITS (CURRENT ANNEXED AREAS) 
AND INCLUDE SECTIONS 1-4, PORTIONS OF SECTION 5, SECTION 6, SECTIONS 8-17, SECTIONS 20-26, 
SECTIONS 30, 31, AND 36. 

• FUTURE ANNEXATIONS INTO THE CITY OF ELKO WOULD REQUIRE OWNERS AND DEVELOPERS TO HAVE 
WATER RIGHTS OR WE WOULD NOT BE ABLE TO SERVE THE ANNEXED AREA WITH WATER. 



ALTERNATIVE WATER RIGHT SOURCES
• KITTRIDGE CANYON/HUMBOLDT RIVER - SURFACE WATER SOURCE

• ELKO WATER WORKS ARE SOLE OWNERS OF THE ENTIRE FLOW OF KITTRIDGE CANYON SPRINGS ABOVE THEIR POINT 
OF DIVERSION AND ALSO RIGHTS FROM THE HUMBOLDT RIVER THAT WERE INCLUDED IN THAT CERTAIN ACT OF NEVADA 
STATE LEGISLATURE ENTITLED “AN ACT TO SUPPLY THE TOWN OF ELKO, ELKO COUNTY NEVADA, WITH WATER FOR 
EXTINGUISHMENT OF FIRE AND OTHER PURPOSES, AND TO DEFINE SAID BOUNDARIES OF SAID TOWN.”

• PRIORITY DATE 1891.

• DUTY 127 MGA (391 AFA).

• HUMBOLDT RIVER –3 SURFACE WATER SOURCES WITH POINTS OF DIVERSIONS FOR SECTIONS 15, 20, AND 21.
• IRRIGATION USE APRIL 15TH TO AUGUST 15TH OF EACH YEAR

• PRIORITY DATES 1872-1880, 1901, AND 1916.

• DUTY 192 MGA (589 AFA).

• HOT SPRINGS - 2 SURFACE WATER SOURCES WITH POINTS OF DIVERSION FOR SECTION 21
• IRRIGATION USE APRIL 1ST TO OCTOBER 1ST OF EACH YEAR

• BATHING AND NATATORIUM JANUARY 1ST TO DECEMBER 1ST OF EACH YEAR

• DUTY 68 MGA (208 AFA).

• SUNDANCE WELL (CLARIDGE/EVANS) – PLACE OF USE IS THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 17 
• QUASI MUNICIPAL JANUARY 1ST TO DECEMBER 31ST EACH YEAR. 

• DUTY OF BOTH PERMITS 10 MGA (30 AFA).



ALTERNATIVE WATER SOURCES
• SNOWBOWL WELL- PLACE OF USE SECTION 23

      • RECREATIONAL JANUARY 1ST TO DECEMBER 31ST EACH YEAR

       •  DUTY 15 MGA (45 AFA) 

• ELKO HEAT COMPANY EFFLUENT – POINT OF DIVERSION FOR SECTION 15 WITH POINTS OF 
USE IN SECTIONS 1-3, 9-17, 20-23, 30, 31, AND 36.

• MUNICIPAL USE AND HEATING JANUARY 1ST THROUGH DECEMBER 31ST OF EACH YEAR

• DUTY 354 MGA (1086 AFA).

• SEWER TREATMENT PLANT EFFLUENT –TREATED WATER FOR TEN POINTS OF DIVERSION WITH 

• PLACES OF USE FOR (2) STORAGE RESERVOIRS, (2) YOUNG/MILLER RANCH LOCATIONS, GOLF 
COURSE, BRUCE MILLER RANCH, LAND APPLICATION FOR CITY PIVOTS, FAIRGROUNDS, 
CONSTRUCTION WATER, AND THE SPORTS COMPLEX.

• DUTY 2284 MGA (7008 AFA).



5 YEAR CITY WELL PUMPAGE 

WATER RIGHT CAPACITY 5,865,325,770 GALLONS (18,000 AFA) (11,152) GPM

• 2017 - 2,043,186,948 GALLONS  (6,273 AFA) (3,887 GPM)

• 2018 – 2,433,535,827 GALLONS (7,471 AFA) (4,630 GPM)

• 2019 – 2,291,696,922 GALLONS (7,036 AFA) (4,360 GPM)

• 2020 -  2,526,224,030 GALLONS (7,756 AFA) (4,806 GPM)

• 2021 – 2,558,959,829 GALLONS (7,856 AFA) (4,869 GPM)



PCWCD LAWSUIT UPDATE ORDER # 1329
• THE STATE ENGINEER SIGNED THE ORDER ON DECEMBER 7TH 2021. 

• THE ORDER IS CURRENTLY BEING APPEALED BY THREE PARTIES, BUTTONPOINT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
US WATER AND LAND, AND PCWCD. NGM HAS ALSO FILED TO JOIN THE APPEAL.   

• THE ORDER REFERENCES GROUND WATER CAPTURE MODELS ON THE HUMBOLDT RIVER BEING 
PREPARED BY DESERT RESEARCH INSTITUTE (DRI) AND THE USGS.

• THE MODELS ARE INTENDED TO SERVE AS A BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE EFFECT OF 
GROUNDWATER PUMPING ON FLOWS IN THE HUMBOLDT RIVER.

• THE MODELS WILL PROVIDE A CONSISTENT BASIS AND A SCIENTIFICALLY SOUND MEASURE TO 
EVALUATE DIFFERENT MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR CURTAILMENT ON THE HUMBOLDT RIVER.

• THIS RESEARCH WILL PROVIDE CAPTURE MAPS WHICH IDENTIFY THE RELATIVE POTENTIAL OF 
CAPTURE OF SURFACE WATER FLOW AT ANY GIVEN WELL LOCATION AND THE POTENTIAL FOR THE 
CAPTURE OF SURFACE WATER FLOW. 



HOW THE ORDER AFFECTS THE CITY OF ELKO
• THIS ORDER DOES NOT AFFECT EXISTING WATER USE OR GROUNDWATER PUMPING.

• THE ORDER IS APPLICABLE TO BOTH NEW APPLICATIONS FOR GROUNDWATER, AND 
APPLICATIONS TO CHANGE GROUNDWATER POINTS OF DIVERSION.

• THE STATE ENGINEER WILL REVIEW ALL APPLICATIONS FOR INCREASES IN STREAM CAPTURE.  

• THE CALCULATED STREAM CAPTURE WILL BE REQUIRED TO BE OFFSET BY REPLACEMENT WATER 
(OR WITHDRAWN WATER RIGHTS) IN THE FOLLOWING SCENARIOS:

 • FOR NEW APPROPRIATION APPLICATIONS, IF CAPTURE IS PREDICTED TO EXCEED 10% 
OF THE TOTAL DUTY OF THE CONSUMPTIVE PORTION OF THE APPLICATION OVER A 50-
YEAR PUMPING PERIOD. 

• FOR APPLICATIONS TO CHANGE A POINT OF DIVERSION, IF THE CHANGE IN THE POD 
IS PREDICTED TO RESULT IN AN INCREASE IN NET CAPTURE ON THE SYSTEM WHICH 
EXCEEDS 10% OF THE TOTAL DUTY OF THE WATER RIGHT OVER A 50-YEAR PUMPING 
PERIOD. 



HOW THE ORDER AFFECTS THE CITY OF ELKO 
CONTINUED

• UNCOMMON OR UNFORESEEABLE CIRCUMSTANCES WILL BE TAKEN ON A CASE-BY-CASE 
BASIS, BUT WITH THE SAME ULTIMATE GOAL OF CALCULATING INCREASED RIVER CAPTURE 
AND FINDING OFFSETTING WATER RIGHTS TO MITIGATE THE INCREASED CAPTURE.

• CITY OF ELKO WATER RIGHTS WHERE POD NEED TO BE MOVED WOULD FALL UNDER THE 
“UNCOMMON” AND CASE-BY-CASE ANALYSIS.

• THE ORDER WILL BE IN EFFECT UNTIL IT IS REPLACED BY A LONG-TERM ORDER UPON THE 
COMPLETION OF THE GROUND WATER CAPTURE MODELS ON THE HUMBOLDT RIVER BEING 
PREPARED BY DESERT RESEARCH INSTITUTE (DRI) AND THE USGS. 



DRI AND USGS GROUND WATER CAPTURE MODELS  

• THE DRI AND USGS GROUNDWATER CAPTURE MODELS SHOULD BE COMPLETED BY THE END 
OF 2022.

• PUBLIC WORKSHOPS FOR THE MODELING EFFORTS ARE SCHEDULED FOR:

• TUESDAY MARCH 8, 2022 AT 9:OO A.M. AT THE LOVELOCK CITY HALL

• TUESDAY MARCH 8, 2022  AT 2:00 P.M. AT THE HUMBOLDT COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION 
BUILDING

• WEDNESDAY MARCH 9, 2022, AT 8:30 A.M. NANNINI ADMINISTRATION BUILDING



QUESTIONS?


	Agenda
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES for February 8, 2022
	Presentation of an appreciation plaque to former Planning Commissioner John Anderson for his 13 years and 3 months of service, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY – NON ACTION ITEM
	Presentation by Robert Thran, Associate Engineer, Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT)
	Presentation by Duncan Golf Management on the 2021 Ruby View Golf Course Year-In-Review.
	Review, consideration, and possible approval to reclassify William Brad Burnham, Facilities Maintenance Technician, to Electrician, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION.
	Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to award a bid for the WRF West Primary Clarifier Recoating & Repairs Project 2021, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
	Review, consideration, and possible award of a contract for Federal Aviation Administration Grant # AIP 3-32-0005-059-2022 Acquire ARFF Vehicle (Class 4 - 1,500 Gallon) and Acquire ARFF Ancillary Equipment to Jviation, Inc.
	Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to Elko County Recreation Board based on the Department of the Treasury lost revenue calculation and City Code Recreation Fund Transient Lodging distribution formula.
	Review, consideration, and possible action of a special event application from St. Joseph's Catholic Church for an Easter Egg Drop Off, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
	St. Joseph's Catholic Church Easter Egg Drop Off (Exhibit "A")
	Review and possible approval for disbursing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) lost revenue funds to the Boys and Girls Clubs of Elko, Inc., Committee Against Domestic Violence (CADV), Cowboy Arts & Gear Museum, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTI
	Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Deed of Dedication for a Public Utility Easement, on City owned property, between APN 001-590-010 and APN 001-590-017, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
	Amended Deed of Dedication (Exhibit "B")
	Review, consideration, and possible action to select auditing firm for annual independent auditing services for Fiscal Years beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2026 per responses to Request for Qualifications, and matters
	Review, consideration, and possible approval to apply to NDEP to be placed on the priority list for Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) funding for Drinking Water and Clean Water Revolving Funds, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
	Dale Johnson, Utilities Director - Water Rights

